

Corporate Business Plan 2022–2026

Quarter 2 Report

CONTENTS

Th	he purpose of this report	3
A s	shared vision for the future	4
Со	orporate Business Plan at a glance	5
	ey priorities for 2022/23	
	uarter highlights	
	ilestone reporting	
	Community	
1.	Outcome 1-1 Healthy and safe	
	Outcome 1-1 Fleating and safe	
	Outcome 1-3 Active and social	
	Outcome 1-4 Artistic and creative	
	Outcome 1-5 Cultural and diverse	
2.		
	Outcome 2-1 Managed and protected	
	Outcome 2-2 Clean and sustainable	
	Outcome 2-3 Responsible and efficient	58
	Outcome 2-4 Resilient and prepared	61
3.	Place	66
_	Outcome 3-1 Connected And Convenient	
	Outcome 3-2 Well-Planned And Adaptable	71
	Outcome 3-3 Attractive And Leafy	
	Outcome 3-4 Functional And Accessible	75
4.		
	Outcome 4-1 Prosperous and local	
	Outcome 4-2 Innovative and confident	
	Outcome 4-3 Appealing and welcoming	
5.		
	Outcome 5-1 Capable and effective	
	Outcome 5-2 Proactive and represented	
	Outcome 5-3 Engaged and informed	
	Outcome 5-4 Responsible and financially-sustainable	

THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

Corporate Business Plan Quarterly Reports are presented to the Council each quarter and are published on our website. The reports provide information on achievements and performance against the quarterly milestones outlined in our 5-Year Corporate Business Plan. This plan is our medium-term planning document which contains the services, projects and activities which have been developed in response to the vision, goals and outcomes of our 10-Year Strategic Community Plan: *Joondalup 2032*.

This report shows all of the listed non-capital projects and activities and indicates whether the project/activity is on time and on budget at the end of each quarter. A commentary is also provided on exactly what has been achieved. Note that reporting on our 5-Year Capital Works Program is undertaken through the Capital Works Program Quarterly Reports.

INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Corporate Business Plan Quarterly Reports and Capital Works Program Quarterly Reports sit within an Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework which builds in Informing, Resourcing, Planning and Reporting requirements to ensure transparency and evidence of planned achievements.



A SHARED VISION FOR THE FUTURE

Our 10-Year Strategic Community Plan, *Joondalup 2032*, outlines our commitment to achieving a shared vision for the future which is operationalised through the 5-Year Corporate Business Plan:

The City in 2032 has a strong focus on sustainability, liveability, active lifestyles and friendly social interactions. We have a healthy environment, with protected bushland, marine ecosystems and accessible parks and green spaces. We are an environmentally-aware and socially-responsible City. We are a vibrant place where people want to live, work and play, and where people can find everything they need locally.

The City in 2032 caters for every stage of life. People feel welcome here and have a clear sense of belonging. We live in high-quality housing in attractive neighbourhoods which have excellent transport linkages and connectivity. We are multi-generational and multicultural; a place where everyone feels connected and safe.

We celebrate and adopt technology and innovation. We are a hub for education and state-of-the-art health facilities, and we are an active advocate for health and other community services. The City in 2032 is internationally connected — we are a global-facing city, with local amenity, and a powerful sense of community.

A GLOBAL CITY: BOLD, CREATIVE AND PROSPEROUS

KEY THEMES

The 5-Year Corporate Business Plan is separated in to the five key themes of *Joondalup 2032*. These key themes each include an overarching goal and a series of outcomes which reflect the feedback you gave us through the Shaping Your Local Community consultation initiative.

COMMUNITY	ENVIRONMENT	PLACE	ECONOMY	LEADERSHIP
-----------	-------------	-------	---------	------------

CORPORATE BUSINESS PLAN AT A GLANCE

Our Corporate Business Plan outlines the services, plans, strategies and frameworks, capital works programs, projects and activities, and key priorities for 2022/23 under each of the goals and outcomes of our 10-Year Strategic Community Plan — *Joondalup 2032*. Below is our Corporate Business Plan at a glance which shows these listed in summary.

SERVICES

The following shows how the services we deliver are aligned to the key themes of *Joondalup 2032*. Further details, including the full costings, are provided under each key theme section of this plan.

COMMUNITY	 Community development Community safety, compliance and education Cultural events, visual arts and arts development Environmental health 	 Immunisation programs Leisure centre Library services Youth services
ENVIRONMENT	 Environment organisational management Emergency management Environmental planning and development 	Litter collectionTechnical and consultancy servicesWaste management
PLACE	 Building and planning compliance Building approvals Building design and construction works Building maintenance Civil design and construction Commercial parking activities Engineering maintenance programs Landscape design and capital works programs 	 Leisure planning Electrical and lighting engineering Major City project delivery Parks maintenance programs Planning approvals, urban design and policy Property management Recreation services Transport and road engineering
ECONOMY	Economic development	

LEADERSHIP

- Audit, risk and executive services
- Communications and stakeholder relations
- Customer service
- · Financial accounting
- Fleet management and mechanical workshop
- Funds management
- Governance support
- Grants management
- Human resources
- Information technology

- Management accounting
- Organisational development
- Organisational management
- Policy and planning
- Purchasing and contracts
- Rates levying
- Recordkeeping and freedom of information
- Strategic infrastructure asset management including capital works programming

PLANS, STRATEGIES AND FRAMEWORKS

The following shows how our plans, strategies and frameworks align to the key themes of *Joondalup 2032*. Detailed descriptions of the documents are provided under each key theme section of this plan.

	Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24	Place Activation Strategy 2022
COMMUNITY	 Access and inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 Age-Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 Cultural Plan 2021–2025 	 Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26
ENVIRONMENT	 Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023 City of Joondalup Local Emergency Management Arrangements City Water Plan 2016–2021 Climate Change Strategy 2014–2019 Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026 	 Environment Plan 2014–2019 Natural Area Management Plans Waste Management Plan 2016–2021 Weed Management Plan 2016 Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan 2021–2026
	·	
PLACE	 Asset Management Strategy 2014–2024 Bike Plan 2016–2021 Local Planning Scheme No 3 	Local Planning StrategyOutdoor Youth Recreation Strategy 2021Property Management Framework
ECONOMY	 Destination Joondalup 2021–2027 Expanding Horizons: An Economic Development Strategy for a Global City (2012) International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017) 	 Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022 Joondalup: Digital City (2012)
LEADERSHIP	10-Year Strategic Financial PlanGovernance Framework 2021Risk Management Framework	Strategic Position StatementsWorkforce Plan 2018–2022

CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAMS

The following shows how the programs from our 5-Year Capital Works Program align to the key themes of *Joondalup 2032*. Sub-program expenditure and revenue are shown under each key theme section of this plan.

COMMUNITY	Nil	
ENVIRONMENT	 Parks and landscaping programs Foreshore and natural areas program 	
PLACE	 Traffic management program Local road traffic management program Blackspot projects Parking facilities program Civil construction programs Major road construction program New paths program Path replacement program Road preservation and resurfacing program Stormwater drainage program Lighting program 	 Facilities program Building construction works program Major projects program Parks and landscaping programs Parks development program Parks equipment program Streetscape enhancement program
ECONOMY	Nil	
LEADERSHIP	Nil	

KEY CAPITAL WORKS PROJECTS

Capital works projects are those listed in our 5-Year Capital Works Program. The following lists the key capital works projects for 2022/23. Note only those capital works projects with reportable actions for 2022/23 have been considered as key capital works projects for this year. These are aligned to the key themes of *Joondalup 2032*. Planned completion dates and total project budgets are provided under each key theme section of this plan.

COMMUNITY	 Craigie Leisure Centre upgrades — phase 1 Hillarys cycle network expansion 	Sorrento Surf Life Saving Club redevelopment
PLACE	 Joondalup Drive/Hodges Drive intersection upgrade Multi-storey car park business case (104 McLarty Avenue) Ocean Reef Park landscape master planning Killen Park and Sycamore Park amenity upgrade Wentworth Park, Fraser Park and Byrne Park revitalisation Ocean Reef Park toilets and changerooms Sorrento Football Club changerooms Chichester Park Clubroom redevelopment Percy Doyle Football/Tee Ball Clubrooms 	 Greenwood Scout Hall refurbishment Christchurch Park changeroom refurbishment Burns Beach food and beverage facility Burns Beach Coastal Node redevelopment Ocean Reef Park landscape master planning Killen Park and Sycamore Park amenity upgrade Wentworth Park, Fraser Park and Byrne Park revitalisation
ECONOMY	Nil	
LEADERSHIP	Nil	

NON-CAPITAL PROJECTS AND ACTIVITIES

The following shows how our non-capital projects and activities align to the key themes of *Joondalup 2032*. These include projects and activities that will not result in capital expenditure or are not yet ready be included in the 5-Year Capital Works Program. Detailed descriptions of, and quarterly milestones for the projects and activities are provided under each key theme section of this plan.

Public Health Plan Lifelong Learning Literacy Development program Community Safety Plan Local Laws WA Dog Amendment (Stop Puppy Farming) Bill 2021 Review of WA Cat Act 2011 CCTV memorandum of understanding with Western Cultural Plan Australia Police Force Edgewater Quarry site contamination COMMUNITY Community programs, activities and events Youth programs, activities and events Age-Friendly Plan Community Funding Program Access and Inclusion Plan • Regional Homelessness Plan Joondalup Community and Libraries Strategy Environment Plan Weed Management Plan Natural area management plans

- Lifelong Learning Information Literacy program
- Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program
- Clubs in-focus professional development program
- Place Activation Strategy
- Public Art Masterplan and Strategy
- · Visual arts program
- 25-Year Invitation Art Prize Retrospective Showcase
- Cultural events program
- Joondalup Performing Arts and Cultural Facility
- Reconciliation Action Plan
- NAIDOC Week
- Citizenship ceremonies
- Civic functions

ENVIRONMENT

- Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan
- · Bulk hard waste review
- · Community waste education
- Environmental education program
- City Water Plan 2016–2021

- Waterwise Council Program
- Corporate waste reduction
- Environmental performance reporting
- Climate Change Strategy
- Bushfire Risk Management Plan
- Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan
- Coastal Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan

 Integrated Transport Strategy Bike Plan Outdoor Youth Recreation Strategy Integrated parking management system Road safety education Local Planning Strategy review Local Planning Scheme No 3 review Local planning policies (relating to residential development) review State planning reform Public Open Space Framework Active reserve and community facility review Leafy City program 	 Land optimisation Property Management Framework Property Management Framework and Facility Hire Subsidy Policy review Heathridge Park Masterplan Ocean Reef Marina Warwick community facilities Woodvale Library and Community Hub Pinnaroo Point food and beverage facility Neil Hawkins Park food and beverage facility Joondalup City Centre Development — Boas Place Duffy House land transfer and commercial expression of interest
 Woodvale skate facility business case Urban bike trails business case 	Works Operation Centre tenure arrangements
 Economic Development Strategy Business engagement Business forums Business capacity and support International Economic Development Activities Plan Digital City Plan Joint Economic Development Initiative 	 Business cluster formation Regional collaboration Business innovation and creativity Destination City Plan Event attraction Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan

Elected Member attraction Local government elections • Elected Member induction program • Elected Member strategic development session Elected Member training • Elected Member Entitlements Policy review Governance Framework review Codes of Conduct review **LEADERSHIP** Delegated Authority Manual review Policy development and review Core system replacement project Strategic Position Statements Advocacy Framework Submissions to State and Federal Governments Community consultation • Strategic Community Reference Group

- Customer satisfaction survey
- E-petitions system
- Live video streaming of Council meetings
- City publications
- · City electronic communications
- Website upgrade
- Customer service centralisation
- 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan
- 5-Year Corporate Business Plan
- Annual Report
- Compliance Audit Return
- Integrity and Conduct Annual Collection
- Australasian Local Government Performance Excellence Program
- · State of the City reporting
- · Audit and Risk Committee

KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2022/23

The following non-capital projects and activities are those we have identified as key priorities for 2022/23. The quarterly milestones for these projects and activities are provided under each key theme section of this plan.

COMMUNITY

Public Art Masterplan and Strategy

A new masterplan and strategy to define the principles and priorities for public art in the City and guide resources and funding towards relevant public art projects that enhance the City's built environment, distinctive natural assets, significant Indigenous sites, historic locations and key destinations.

Reconciliation Action Plan

A new plan which will set out the City's commitment to reconciliation with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

CI

Environment Plan

A plan which outlines the City's commitment to conserving, enhancing and rehabilitating the City of Joondalup's natural assets to ensure the long-term protection of the environment for future generations.

Climate Change Strategy

ENVIRONMENT

A strategy which guides the City's planning for the future impacts of climate change across a range of areas relevant to local government, including infrastructure, health services, water management, emergency management, and the natural environment.

Coastal Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan

A plan developed under State Planning Policy 2.6 which identifies areas and assets that could potentially be impacted by coastal erosion and inundation hazards due to storm events and projected sea level rise. The plan provides recommendations and actions for how the City can respond and adapt to these hazards.

Integrated Transport Strategy

A new strategy to guide multi-modal transport planning and inform strategic policy, advocacy and infrastructure decisions in the City over the next 20–30 years.

Local Planning Strategy review

A review of the City's Local Planning Strategy, including the Local Housing Strategy and Local Commercial Strategy, to ensure the ongoing applicability of the stated strategic direction for land use planning and development.

Public Open Space Framework

A new framework which will classify the City's public open spaces according to primary function and manner of use, and guide the allocation of infrastructure assets.

Ocean Reef Marina

Construction of a world-class waterfront precinct providing recreational, tourism, residential and boating facilities. This project is being managed by DevelopmentWA with support and contributions provided by the City.

Pinnaroo Point food and beverage facility

Development of a new commercially-viable, high-quality and environmentally-sustainable food and beverage facility at Pinnaroo Point, Hillarys.

Joondalup City Centre Development — Boas Place

Investigations into future opportunities for the development of Boas Place in the Joondalup City Centre to incorporate a variety of land uses.

Economic Development Strategy

A strategy to guide economic development activities within the City by providing support to local business, stimulating investment, and driving economic growth.

Digital City Plan

A plan that outlines the digital future we could achieve through a set of strategies and actions. The plan addresses key priority actions, including delivering capacity-building programs for local businesses and potential for establishing virtual and physical spaces that create opportunities for start-ups.

Destination City Plan

A plan to attract more visitors to the region, increase the City's share of Perth's and Western Australia's key markets, and grow the visitor economy.

Event attraction

Attract and support significant events that are unique to Joondalup to enhance its image as an attractive destination for visitors, tourists and business.

PLACE

ECONOMY

Core system replacement project

A core information technology solution for the City which would include a customer relationship management system, online customer portal, finance, and asset management system.

Advocacy Framework

LEADERSHIP

A framework that provides a strategic approach to advocacy activities to ensure evidenced-based decision making, greater stakeholder engagement, and the development of processes to maximise opportunities for support and investment into the City.

Customer service centralisation

A project to centralise the City's main customer service functions to achieve greater organisational efficiency and a higher rate of first point of contact resolution.

10-Year Strategic Financial Plan

A high-level document that outlines the City's approach to delivering infrastructure and services to the community in a financially-sustainable and affordable manner.

QUARTER HIGHLIGHTS

COMMUNITY

Joondalup Festival of Motoring

The City supported the inaugural Joondalup Festival of Motoring. A free, multi-day family event over the weekend of 28–30 October 2022, this event brought thousands of people and 1,000+ vehicles to the Joondalup City Centre. Program highlights included the Joondalup City Sprint, which had 150 competitors from the community, and the PowerPlay Corporate Challenge.

Accessible Beaches

Mayor Hon Albert Jacob joined two Australian Paralympic athletes at Mullaloo Beach to launch Accessible Beaches on Monday 5 December 2022. Beach accessibility is a focal point of the City's Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 and the City worked closely with key stakeholders to increase beach access within the City. Access improvements include:

- Beach wheelchairs The City has three beach wheelchairs providing access to the beach for children and adults with disability. The chairs are easily pushed over the sand to the water's edge. The wheelchairs are presently located at Mullaloo Beach, Sorrento Beach and Hillarys Boat Harbour Beach and are free to use.
- Access matting Hillarys Beach, Hillarys Boat Harbour and Mullaloo Beach feature access matting that allow people with difficulty navigating sand to reach the water.

Invitation Art Prize

The Invitation Art Prize was launched on Sunday 23 October at Westfield Whitford City. Now in its 24th year, the acquisitive art prize is open to professional Western Australian artists and is acknowledged by the visual arts industry as one of the major contemporary visual art prizes for professional artists in the state. This year's winner was Emma Buswell for her artwork, titled *The sometimes luxury handbag and other suburban fables*, which used hand-woven glass beads, embroidery, natural pigment and polymer, and food materials on paper.

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Leadership and Sustainability Award

The City claimed its third environmental award in 2022 for sustainable water management. Local Government Professionals WA awarded the City of Joondalup the Environmental Leadership and Sustainability Award for the Smart Control Irrigation System project, a new irrigation technology that has reduced the City's groundwater use by 86,000 kilolitres. The technology is installed at more than 200 parks across the City and links to a webbased central control system that enables remote access to those irrigation controllers to make changes in real time.

Waterwise Verge Garden Workshop

As part of the City's Environmental Education Program, more than 90 community members attended a Waterwise Verge Garden workshop hosted by the City at the Duncraig Community Centre on Saturday 29 October 2022. At the workshop, participants were shown how to start their own waterwise verge garden at home, and learnt about the City's Waterwise Verge Rebate Program that was launched in November 2022. The workshop highlighted the importance of replacing grass, synthetic lawn and paving with waterwise plants, particularly in the context of reduced rainfall in Perth. The workshop also included a tour of the Duncraig Edible Garden and information about the plant species and establishment of the garden.

Coastal and Estuarine Risk Mitigation Program

The City was successful in obtaining a Coastal and Estuarine Risk Mitigation Program grant of \$943,697 towards a Coastal Risk Adaptation Program to maintain high and medium priority groynes and sea walls at Marmion, Sorrento and Mullaloo. The Federal Government's Coastal and Estuarine Risk Mitigation Program 2022/23 is a national program funded by the Emergency Response Fund that provides a total of \$50 million in funding to support priority projects that reduce the risks and impacts of disasters on coastal communities and economies.

PLACE

Turf upgrades

The City recently undertook turf upgrades at Percy Doyle Reserve, Duncraig and the Warwick Hockey Centre, Warwick. The work involved stitching patches of artificial turf into the existing grass to make it more solid and protect it from wear and tear. The machine used for stitching has 40 needles and bobbins and moves at just under 20 metres per hour. At Percy Doyle reserve, Duncraig, nearly 600 square metres of the ground was upgraded, strengthening the two goal areas and the centre of the field. This hybrid pitch system means the end of re-turfing, which the City has done annually for 10 years. The City is one of only two local governments in Western Australia to use this machine for turf upgrades.

Wentworth Park Revitalisation Project

The upgrading of Wentworth Park, Padbury was successfully completed in late November 2022. Prior to these upgrades, the park had outdated play amenities, dry and weedy grass areas, and limited shade. Wentworth Park, Padbury now has new turf, mulched garden beds and an irrigation system. This upgrade delivered other new amenities, such as a new playground and sandpit surrounded by a looping path. Additional trees were also planted to increase future shade coverage.

ECONOMY

West Tech Fest

The City sponsored the West Tech Fest — Cybotics and AI Day which was held on Monday, 5 December 2022 at the Joondalup Resort. This event showcased emerging technology across cyber security, robotics, data science and artificial intelligence. The West Tech Fest provided opportunities for local start-ups and the tech community to connect with and hear from global leaders as they shared insights into how to grow a successful business. Activities at the event included addressed from keynote speakers, networking events, pitching opportunities, mentoring sessions, "hackathons", and workshops with tech leaders and investors from across the United States, United Kingdom, Asia Pacific region, and Australia.

LEADERSHIP

Economic Development and Advocacy Trip — Cyber Relations

Cr Christine Hamilton-Prime and the Manager of Economic Development and Advocacy travelled to Sydney and Canberra in November 2022 to represent the City at meetings with key stakeholders, including Microsoft and the Cyber Advisor to the Minister for Home Affairs. This trip provided an opportunity to deliver advocacy activities, ensure evidenced-based decision making, conduct stakeholder engagement, and maximise opportunities for support and investment into the City of Joondalup.

Integrity Framework

Prior to International Anti-Corruption Day on 9 December 2022, the City of Joondalup published its new Integrity Framework. The framework outlines the City's expectation that involved with the organisation will act with integrity and behave in an ethical, transparent, and accountable way. The framework describe how recognising the importance of integrity across the government sector is vital in preventing misconduct and corruption.

1. COMMUNITY

OUR GOAL

We have a vibrant cultural scene, and our community is friendly, welcoming, caring and supportive. We are prepared for emergencies and feel strong and resilient. We encourage and support local organisations and community-led activities, and feel connected and safe in our neighbourhoods.

YOUR OUTCOMES

1-1 Healthy and safe

You feel healthy and safe in your local community.

1-2 Inclusive and connected

You enjoy local services and programs that cater for different ages, abilities and backgrounds.

1-3 Active and social

You enjoy quality local activities and programs for sport, learning and recreation.

1-4 Artistic and creative

You celebrate, support and participate in art and events in your local area.

1-5 Cultural and diverse

You understand, value and celebrate the City's unique Aboriginal and other diverse cultures and histories.

Outcome 1-1 Healthy and safe

You feel healthy and safe in your local community.

Non-capital projects and activities

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Public Health Plan		
A new plan to respond to local health risks and establis	h objectives and policy priorities for the promotion and protection of public health in	the City.
Development of a new public health plan is a requirement	ent under Stage 5 implementation of the WA Public Health Act 2016.	
Q1		
Q2		
Q3		
Q4 Undertake background research and analysis to		
inform development of a new Public Health Plan		
2023–2027.		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
Community Safety Plan A new plan to address community safety initiatives across the City, including parking management, animal management, CCTV, graffiti removal and community amenity.				
Q1				
Q2 Commence development of a draft Community Safety Plan 2023–2027.	Commenced development of a draft Community Safety Plan 2023–2027 by exploring the community's perception of the City's role and responsibilities of providing community safety and identifying initiatives to promote community safety at the Strategic Community Reference Group meeting held on 22 October 2022.	√		
Q3 Progress development of the draft Community Safety Plan 2023–2027.				
Undertake community consultation to inform development of the draft Community Safety Pla 2023–2027.	un .			
Q4 Present the draft Community Safety Plan 2023 2027 to Council seeking endorsement.				
Local Laws				
Local laws are made under the Local Government Act 1995 to cover matters considered necessary for the good government of the City. Local laws				
are reviewed every 8 years in accordance with the A				
Q1 Present the Amendment Local Law 2021 to Council seeking endorsement following community consultation.	Presented a report on the <i>Amendment Local Law 2021</i> to Council at the 16 August 2022 Council meeting for adoption (CJ124-08/22 refers). Council resolved to refer the item back to the Policy Committee for further consideration and for each local law to be considered separately.	✓		
Q2 Commence a review of the <i>Animals Local Law</i> 1999 with regard to additional measures being incorporated for the control of cats.	Commenced a review of the <i>Animals Local Law 1999</i> regarding additional measures being incorporated for the control of cats.	√		
Q3 Progress the amendment process for the <i>Animals Local Law 1999</i> , if required.				
Q4 Progress the amendment process for the <i>Animals Local Law 1999</i> , if required.				

MI	LESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
An go		to prevent unregistered dog breeders from establishing puppy farms. The Bill gives leading to the contract of the contract of the province of the contract of	
Q1			
Q2	Review any changes to City services required by the new amendment to the <i>Dog Act 1976</i> .	The review into changes to City services required by the new amendment to the Dog Act 1976 is in progress in accordance with the working group meeting with the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries.	√
	Participate in a working group with the Western Australian Local Government Association to collaborate on the implementation of the new	Western Australian Local Government Association did not hold a working group meeting during this quarter.	√
	amendment and progress a regional response to the management of dog data.	Participated in a working group meeting with the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries on Wednesday 20 November 2022 to collaborate on the proposed centralised registration system and impact on local governments.	
Q3	Commence implementation of any changes to City services required by the new amendment to the <i>Dog Act 1976</i> .		
	Participate in a working group with the Western Australian Local Government Association to collaborate on the implementation of the new amendment and progress a regional response to the management of dog data.		
Q4	Commence implementation of any changes to City services required by the new amendment to the <i>Dog Act 1976</i> .		
	Participate in a working group with the Western Australian Local Government Association to collaborate on the implementation of the new amendment and progress a regional response to the management of dog data.		

MII	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
A s	Review of WA Cat Act 2011 A statutory review of the Cat Act 2011 which is likely to bring about changes to the way local governments manage cats, particularly in relation to nuisance issues.				
Q1					
Q2	Review any changes to City services required by the new amendments to the WA <i>Cat Act 2011</i> .	No changes required to City services as the State Government is still progressing the new amendments to the WA <i>Cat Act 2011</i> .	✓		
	Participate in a working group with the Western Australian Local Government Association to collaborate on the implementation of the new amendment and progress a regional response to the management of cat data.	No action required as the State Government is still progressing the new amendments to the WA Cat Act 2011.	√		
Q3					
Q4					

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
	CCTV memorandum of understanding with Western Australia Police Force Development of a memorandum of understanding with Western Australia Police Force to establish an operating model for access to the City's CCTV			
data	·	western Australia Police Force to establish an operating model for access to the Cit	y s CCTV	
Q1	Engage with relevant stakeholders to develop a memorandum of understanding with Western Australia Police Force to establish an operating model for access to the City's CCTV data.	A meeting was held with representatives of the Western Australia Police Force to develop a memorandum of understanding for the provision of CCTV data.	√	
Q2	Progress the development of a memorandum of understanding with Western Australia Police Force.	Continued to progress the development of a memorandum of understanding with the Western Australian Police Force. Completed a draft memorandum that requests real time access to the City's Automated Number Plate Recognition data.	√	
Q3	Finalise the development of a memorandum of understanding with Western Australia Police Force and present to Council.			
	Commence implementation of the memorandum of understanding with Western Australia Police Force.			
Q4				

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Edgewater Quarry site contamination Management of potential ground and water contamination at the Edgewater Quarry site in response to a notice from the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation.			
Q1 Liaise with an external consultant to finalise a draft site management plan for contamination at Edgewater Quarry.	Received the draft site management plan from the external consultant and forwarded it to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation for consideration.	✓	
Q2 Liaise with an external consultant to finalise a draft site management plan for contamination at Edgewater Quarry.	Completed in the previous quarter.	✓	
Present the draft site management plan for contamination at Edgewater Quarry to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation seeking approval.	The draft site management plan was presented to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation in the previous quarter. The Edgewater Quarry Status Report was presented to Elected Members at the Major Projects and Finance Committee meeting held on 28 November 2022.	✓	
Q3 Present the approved site management plan for contamination at Edgewater Quarry to Elected Members.			
Commence implementation of the site management plan for contamination at Edgewater Quarry.			
Q4			

Outcome 1-2 Inclusive and connected

You enjoy local services and programs that cater for different ages, abilities and backgrounds.

Non-capital projects and activities

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Pro	Community programs, activities and events Programs, activities and events which contribute towards building a strong, resilient, and connected community through coordination, capacity building, collaboration, and advocacy.			
Q1	Deliver scheduled events as part of the Communities in-focus program for the quarter.	No events scheduled for the quarter. Commenced planning for programs to be delivered across quarters 2, 3 and 4. Commenced a review of the Communities infocus program.	✓	
	Promote the Meet-Your-Neighbour Project and assist interested residents to participate.	The Meet-Your-Neighbour Project was promoted in the quarter. The project is scheduled to be launched in quarter 2	✓	
	Deliver the Community Transport Service.	Delivered the Community Transport Service, with 106 trips undertaken in the quarter and 853 residents utilising the service.	✓	
Q2	Deliver scheduled events as part of the Communities in-focus program for the quarter.	Delivered a Communities in-focus Leadership for Change workshop with 40 registrations. 96% of attendees indicated they would implement changes in their group or organisation as a result of attending the workshop.	✓	
	Deliver the Community Transport Service.	Delivered the Community Transport Service, with 96 trips undertaken in the quarter and 745 residents utilising the service.	✓	
Q3	Communities in-focus program for the quarter.			
	Promote the Meet-Your-Neighbour Project and assist interested residents to participate.			
	Deliver the Community Transport Service.			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q4	I I		
	Communities in-focus program for the quarter.		
	Deliver the Community Transport Service.		
	ith programs, activities and events		
		or young people to help them engage with their peers in a safe and supportive environments of the people to help them engage with their peers in a safe and supportive environments.	onment.
Q1	1 9 7	Delivered the Youth Forum on 16 August 2022 in conjunction with the daytime	✓
	the quarter, including:	Council meeting. The report from this forum was received and will be used to	
	Youth Forum 2022	guide the future direction of the Youth Services program.	
		Delivered the Defeat the Beat youth music event on 12 July 2022, at the True	
		North Church in Mullaloo. This event was rescheduled to this quarter due to	
		COVID-19. Over 110 young people attended to see <i>Hey So Hungry</i> take out the	
		top prize.	
	Deliver scheduled programs and activities for	Delivered 192 youth program sessions in the quarter, with 2,323 young people	✓
	young people.	participating in the following:	
		Anchors Friday night drop-in	
		Anchors MA15+	
		Youth event series	
		Music Edge	
		Freestyle Edge	
		Youth Truck	
		Outreach community youth engagement	
Q2	Deliver scheduled programs and activities for	Delivered 108 youth program sessions in the quarter, with 1,977 young people	✓
	young people.	participating in the following:	
		Anchors Friday night drop-in	
		Anchors MA15+	
		Youth event series	
		Music Edge	
		Freestyle Edge	
		Youth Truck	
		Outreach community youth engagement.	

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3 Deliver scheduled program of youth events for		
the quarter, including:		
 Summer Sessions 		
 BMX, Skate and Scooter series 		
Defeat the Beat		
Deliver scheduled programs and activities for		
young people.		
Q4 Deliver scheduled program of youth events for		
the quarter, including:		
 City of Joondalup Youth Awards 		
Deliver scheduled programs and activities for		
young people.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
A pl	e-Friendly Plan an which articulates the City's commitment to foste icipation are maximised to achieve optimal quality	ering active ageing environments, where opportunities for health, wellbeing, security of life.	and
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Age- Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Age Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 were implemented in the quarter: Organised Get on Board public transport tour which is scheduled for Seniors Week (7 November 2022). Commenced Getting Around Town campaign. Continued A Walk in the Park campaign. 	✓
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Age-Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Age-Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 were implemented in the quarter: Commenced the roll-out of the Getting Around Town accessible and affordable transport program. Commenced the roll-out of A Walk in the Park outdoor spaces and amenities campaign. Held a Get on Board transport tour on 7 November 2022 during WA Seniors Week with 5 participants. Held a Seniors Gathering on 14 December 2022 which attracted 28 seniors. Of the 14 participants who provided feedback, 100% rated their overall experience as "good" or "very good". 	✓
	Undertake a review of the Age-Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 to inform development of a new Age-Friendly Plan.	Council endorsed an extension of the Age Friendly Plan to 2023/24 at the 13 December 2022 Council Meeting (CJ198-12/22 refers). A review of the plan will commence in 2023/24.	√
	Commence development of a new Age-Friendly Plan.	Did not commence development of a new Age Friendly Plan due to the extension of the current Plan. A review of the Plan will commence in 2023/24.	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Age- Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 for the quarter. Finalise development of the draft Age-Friendly Plan.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Age- Friendly Plan 2018/19–2022/23 for the quarter. Present the draft Age-Friendly Plan to Council seeking endorsement.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
	Community Funding Program A funding program consisting of 2 rounds intended for the delivery of community-initiated projects, programs and events that benefit of the City of			
	ndalup community.	the delivery of community initiated projects, programs and events that benefit of the v	Oity Oi	
Q1	Advertise round 1 of the Community Funding Program and open the program for submissions.	Advertised round 1 of the Community Funding Program during July 2022 via the City's eNewsletters and social media. Provided workshops for prospective applicants on 28 July 2022 and 5 August 2022.	✓	
	Evaluate the submissions received and determine the preferred recipients.	The assessment panel met on 7 September 2022. Recommendations for small grants were provided to the Chief Executive Officer for consideration, with large grant recommendations to be considered by Council at the 15 November 2022 Council meeting.	✓	
Q2	Issue the funding agreements and payments for successful round 1 applicants.	Applicants for round one large grants were considered by Council at the 15 November 2022 Council meeting (CJ189-11/22 refers). Agreements for large and small grant recipients were executed and funds issued.	✓	
Q3	Advertise round 2 of the Community Funding Program and open the program for submissions. Evaluate the submissions received and determine the preferred recipients.			
Q4	Issue the funding agreements and payments for successful round 2 applicants.			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
A pl	ess and Inclusion Plan an which contributes towards the creation of acces cesses, and spaces for the community.	sible and inclusive communities through the provision and improvement of services,	, events,
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 were implemented in the quarter: Commenced investigations into a priority location for coastal access upgrades, including access audits of beaches, liaison with appropriate internal stakeholders, and liaison with the Beach Access Working Group. 	√
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 were implemented in the quarter: Incorporated accessible events incorporated into the Little Feet Festival in October 2022, including a Social Story, Sensory Space and Auslan-interpreted activities. Commenced investigation into improving accessibility of beach and foreshore areas in October 2022. Held a meeting of the Beach Access Working Group in October 2022. Held an Accessible Beaches event and media opportunity with Mayor Hon Albert Jacob and paralympic athletes. Celebrated International Day of People With Disabilities on 3 December 2022 with a staff awareness campaign and events at the City of Joondalup libraries. These included the launch of Social Stories for Coder Dojo, Lego Club, and Story Time, accessible Story Times, and Auslan-interpreted activities. Council received a report and noted the activities undertaken from the Access and Inclusion Plan for 2021/22 at its meeting on 13 December 2022 (CJ198-12/22 refers). 	•
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Access and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 for the quarter.		
Q4	and Inclusion Plan 2021/22–2023/24 for the quarter.		
	Present an annual progress report to Elected Members and the Department of Communities.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
A jo	ional Homelessness Plan int plan with the City of Wanneroo which includes a eriencing homelessness have the optimum opportu	a series of actions that demonstrate the Cities' commitment to ensuring that people a	at-risk of
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26 for the quarter	 The following actions from the Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26 were implemented in the quarter: Received 50 reports of people experiencing homelessness with 20 referrals made to the community outreach teams Heart on the Streets and No Limits Perth. Commenced preparation of a new edition of the Homelessness and Hardship Directory. Held a meeting with the Joondalup Wanneroo Ending Homelessness Group on 31 August 2022. 	•
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26 were implemented in the quarter: Received 43 reports of people experiencing homelessness with 38 referrals made to the community outreach teams Heart on the Streets and No Limits Perth. Commenced planning for a Regional Homelessness Forum in February 2023. Continued revising the Homelessness and Hardship Directory. Finalised a draft Hand Up pocket guide of homelessness support services. Hosted and contributed to the Joondalup Wanneroo Ending Homelessness Group meeting on 2 November 2022. 	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26 for the quarter.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Regional Homelessness Plan 2022/23–2025/26 for the quarter.		

Outcome 1-3 Active and social

You enjoy quality local activities and programs for sport, learning and recreation.

Non-capital projects and activities

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Joo	Joondalup Community and Libraries Strategy			
A n	A new strategy for the integrated delivery of City programs and infrastructure that support community connections and lifelong learning and literacy.			
Q1	Appoint an external consultant to develop a new	An external consultant was not appointed in the quarter. A new approach to	✓	
	Joondalup Community and Libraries Strategy.	developing the strategy is being investigated and it is anticipated that an external		
		consultant will be engaged in quarter 2.		
Q2	Liaise with the external consultant to undertake	The appointment of an external consultant has been delayed. The request for	✓	
	background research and analysis to inform	quotation was advertised from December 2022–January 2023, seeking a suitable		
	development of the new Joondalup Community	external consultant to inform the development of the new Joondalup Community		
	and Libraries Strategy.	and Libraries Strategy.		
Q3	Liaise with the external consultant to undertake			
	community consultation to inform development of			
	the new Joondalup Community and Libraries			
	Strategy.			
Q4	Commence development of the draft Joondalup			
	Community and Libraries Strategy.			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS			
Lifelong Learning Literacy Development program Programs, events and activities designed to support literacy and promote lifelong learning opportunities in the community (eg Story Time, Better Beginnings).						
Q1	Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Literacy Development program for the quarter.	 The following programs, activities and events were delivered in the quarter: 251 program sessions with 9,802 attendees at: Story time with Premier Hon Mark McGowan MLA and Caitlyn Collins MLA Baby rhyme time Toddler time Children's book week program <i>Dreaming with Eyes Open</i> Family history and genealogy Writers' group English and French conversation groups Book clubs. Meet the author series: Dave Warner presented at the Woodvale Library with 70 attendees Holden Sheppard launched his book The Brink at Joondalup Library, with more than 50 attendees Held the first 150+ event at St Stephen's School with Danielle Laidley in conversation with Craig Silvey on <i>Don't Look Away, A Memoir of Identity and Acceptance</i>. 				

MII	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Literacy Development program for the quarter.	The following programs, activities and events were delivered in the quarter as part of the Lifelong Learning Literacy Development program: 216 program sessions with 7,133 attendees at: Story time Baby rhyme time Toddler time Writers' group English and French conversation groups Book clubs Meet the author Better Beginnings program. Meet the author series with local authors Natasha Lester, Elizabeth Brennan, Richard Offen, Vivian Stuart Joanna Morrison, Ash Harrier and Kate McCaffrey. Stories in the Park were held at Camberwarra Park (Craigie), Barridale Park (Kingsley), Robin Reserve (Sorrento), and Neil Hawkins Park (Joondalup) with an average of 20 children per session. Better Beginnings Program schedule included the delivery and presentation of literacy packs from July to December for the following ages: Better Beginnings (birth) — 2,696 packs Better Beginnings+ (18 months–3 years) — 3,453 packs Sing with Me (kindergarten) — 575 packs.	
Q3	Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Literacy Development program for the quarter.		
Q4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

MILE	STONE	COMMENT	STATUS				
Prog	Lifelong Learning Information Literacy program Programs, events and activities designed to provide information to support information literacy and promote lifelong learning opportunities in the community (eg Discovery Sessions, Community Outreach, School Connections).						
	Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Information Literacy program for the quarter.	 The following programs, activities and events were delivered in the quarter: 272 program sessions with 3,716 attendees: Discovery sessions Brain games Chess Mah-jong Knitting and crochet groups School holiday programs Lego club. Presented 58 sessions to 1,118 attendees from parent groups, City staff, community groups, education and child health centres. Held a stall at the Edith Cowan University Open Day. Commenced civic tours. Delivered Showcase in Pixels. Provided the Joondalup Library 25th birthday celebrations. 					

MI	LESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Information Literacy program for the quarter.	The following programs, activities and events were delivered in the quarter as part of the Lifelong Learning Information Literacy program: 264 program sessions with 2,835 attendees: Discovery sessions Brain games Chess Mah-jong Tabletop games Family history research Conversation groups Camera club Knitting and crochet groups School holiday programs Lego club School Connections program Library Outreach and engagement. Presented Student Citizenship Awards to students at 52 local primary and high schools. Delivered the school holiday programs: Sensational Spring and Christmas Craft. Hosted Virtual Whadjuk, an immersive virtual reality presentation relating to the early days of Aboriginal culture and the first landing in WA. Held Artist in Residence events to support the completion of the Whitford Mural project. Delivered the Libraries and the City Showcase at the Little Feet Festival and Music in the Park. Provided support to students leading up to their final exams including Time Out wellness activities.	
Q	B Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Information Literacy program for the quarter.		
Q4			

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program		
	community confidence and support community connectedness (eg Keystrokes, Code	rDojo.
Ready Tech Go).		,
Q1 Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program for the quarter.	The following programs, activities and events were delivered in the quarter: • 87 program session, with 250 attendees: • CoderDojo • Ready Tech Go • Keystrokes • Online resources training. • One-on-one assistance provided for: • Being safe online • Mobile phone tips • Organising photos • Libraries online platforms.	√
Q2 Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program for the quarter.	The following programs, activities and events were delivered in the quarter as part of the Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program: • 72 program session, with 347 attendees: • CoderDojo • Ready Tech Go • Keystrokes • Online resources training.	✓
Q3 Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program for the quarter.		
Q4 Deliver scheduled programs, activities and events as part of the Lifelong Learning Digital Literacy program for the quarter.		
Clubs in-focus professional development program		
	lub volunteers to perform their roles and ensure ongoing club sustainability and succe	ess.
Q1 Deliver the Clubs in-focus professional development program to club volunteers.	Held the final sessions for the <i>Good to Great</i> strategic planning program in July 2022. Five clubs participated in the program to develop a strategic plan.	
Q2		
Q3 Deliver the Clubs in-focus professional development program to club volunteers.		
Q4		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
Place Activation Strategy				
A new strategy which establishes a framework for cons	sistent delivery and support of placemaking across the City.			
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the Place	No actions were implemented from the Place Activation Strategy in the quarter. An	✓		
Activation Strategy 2022 for the quarter.	assessment of resources is currently being undertaken and it is anticipated			
	scheduled actions will be implemented in quarter 2.			
Q2 Implement scheduled actions from the Place	The key action to implement the Place Activation Strategy is to implement the	✓		
Activation Strategy 2022 for the quarter.	scheduled actions from the Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022			
	(Refer to Outcome 4.3). In that plan the following actions were implemented this			
	quarter:			
	Town Team movement were appointed to implement the first stage of the Place Activation Plan with the creation of a Town Team.			
	 The first Town Team meeting was held on 29 November 2022 with a follow- up meeting on 14 December 2022. 			
	The first Town Team events are being planned to coincide with the Perth			
	Festival Djoondal event during 10-12 February 2023, with other events to			
	follow.			
Q3 Implement scheduled actions from the Place				
Activation Strategy 2022 for the quarter.				
Q4 Implement scheduled actions from the Place				
Activation Strategy 2022 for the quarter.				

Outcome 1-4 Artistic and creative

You celebrate, support and participate in art and events in your local area.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Cultural Plan		
A plan which provides strategic direction for the City's programming and infrastructure most valued by the city's	s arts and cultural activities over a 5-year period to ensure investment is directed towa	rds the
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the Cultural	The following actions from the Cultural Plan 2021–2025 were implemented in the	1
	, i	.
Plan 2021–2025 for the quarter.	quarter:	
	Drafted a consultancy scope specification for a cultural facility audit. The audit	
	will be progressed in quarters 2 and 3.	
Q2 Implement scheduled actions from the Cultural	The following actions from the Cultural Plan 2021–2025 were implemented in the	\checkmark
Plan 2021–2025 for the quarter.	quarter:	
	Commenced a Cultural Facility Audit Survey with 850 arts organisations and	
	individual artists.	
Q3 Implement scheduled actions from the Cultural		
Plan 2021–2025 for the quarter.		
Q4 Implement scheduled actions from the Cultural		
Plan 2021–2025 for the quarter.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
A ne	Public Art Masterplan and Strategy A new masterplan and strategy to define the principles and priorities for public art in the City and guide resources and funding towards relevant public art projects that enhance the City's built environment, distinctive natural assets, significant Indigenous sites, historic locations and key destinations.				
Q1	Advertise a request for quotation for development of a new Public Art Masterplan and Strategy.	Advertising the request for quotation was delayed in this quarter as it was provided to Elected Members for feedback. The scope for consultancy will be developed in quarter 2 and a request for quotation will be advertised. The Art Developer's Contribution Scheme was reviewed by Elected Members as part of the development of the Public Art Masterplan and Strategy in September 2022.	✓		
	Evaluate the quotations submitted and determine a preferred external consultant.	Quotations were not evaluated in the quarter as the request for quotation was not advertised. This will be progressed in quarter 2.	✓		
Q2		The consultant brief has been developed and a quotation will be advertised in quarter 3. The Work Plan for the Strategic Community Reference Group will be considered by Council in quarter 3.	✓		
Q3	Liaise with the external consultant to undertake community consultation to inform development of the draft Public Art Masterplan and Strategy 2023–2033.				
Q4	Commence development of the draft Public Art Masterplan and Strategy 2023–2033.				

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
An a	ual arts program annual program of visual art that provides the comr motes Joondalup as a vibrant cultural destination.	nunity with access to contemporary, quality artworks, supports local arts developmen	nt, and
Q1		 The following opportunities were delivered in the quarter: Advertised expressions of interest for the next commission of the City's art collection from 20 June–15 August 2022. The selection panel convened, and recommendations will be presented to the Policy Committee meeting on 31 October 2022. Partnered with The Lester Prize, with a day trip to Westfield Whitford City to view the Invitation Art Prize. This was followed by a visit to the Art Gallery of Western Australia for a guided tour of The Lester Prize portraiture exhibition. Commenced a tender process seeking respondents for a gallery space within the City. 	√
Q2	Deliver the Invitation Art Prize exhibition.	The Invitation Art Prize exhibition was held from 9–23 October 2022 and attracted audiences of over 10,000 people. The exhibition also generated substantial online interest owing to the winner of this year's Acquisitive Prize, Emma Buswell's "chook bag": <i>The sometimes luxury handbag and other suburban fables</i> .	√
	Coordinate the delivery of a mural arts project as part of the Mural Arts Program.	Coordinated the delivery of a new mural titled <i>Heathridge</i> by Trevor Bly and Sam Bloor as part of the Mural Arts Program. This mural was commissioned and installed in the quarter at the Admiral Park Community Sporting Facility (Heathridge).	✓
	Commission and display new artwork as part of the Inside-Out Billboard Project at the Joondalup Library.	Commissioned a new billboard titled <i>Satellite City</i> by Britt Mikkelson. The billboard was installed/displayed in October 2022 as part of the Inside-Out Billboard Project at the Joondalup Library.	✓
	Monitor for opportunities to initiate public art projects, as appropriate.	Monitored for opportunities to initiate public art projects and commenced a percent-for-art project with Sorrento Surf Lifesaving Club.	✓
Q3	Deliver the Community Art Exhibition. Establish a gallery for hire by local arts groups. Monitor for opportunities to initiate public art projects, as appropriate.		

MII	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q4	Deliver the Community Art Exhibition. Coordinate the delivery of a mural arts project as part of the Mural Arts Program. Commission and display new artwork as part of the Inside-Out Billboard Project at the Joondalup Library. Undertake a review of the visual arts program and develop the program for 2023/24. Monitor for opportunities to initiate public art projects, as appropriate.		
An		uild community spirit and cultural identity, and provide opportunities for community	
Q1	Deliver scheduled program of cultural events for the quarter, including: • Sunday Serenades Deliver scheduled program of cultural events for the quarter, including: • Little Feet Festival	 The following program of cultural events were delivered in the quarter: Sunday Serenades: Gina Williams and Guy Ghouse — 17 July 2022, 191 tickets sold Golden Age Girls in Concert — 21 August 2022, 246 tickets sold Bang Bang Betty and the H-Bombs — 18 September 2022, 276 tickets sold. The following program of cultural events were delivered in the quarter: Little Feet Festival — 23 October 2022, estimated 3,000 attendees. Sunday Serenades: 	✓
	 Sunday Serenades Music in the Park Concert 1. 	 Jessie Gordon, Lucky Oceans and Bill Lawrie — 23 October 2022, 213 tickets sold. Mark Turner and Strings — 13 November 2022, 186 tickets sold. Music in the Park Concert 1 at Penistone Park (Greenwood) — 26 November 2022, estimated 2,000 attendees. Kambarang Concert at Penistone Park (Greenwood) — 27 November 2022, estimated 1,000 attendees. 	
Q3	Deliver scheduled program of cultural events for the quarter, including: • Music in the Park Concert 2 • Valentine's Concert • Joondalup Festival • Music in the Park Concert 3.		

MILESTONE		COMMENT	STATUS
	Deliver scheduled program of cultural events for the quarter, including: Joondalup Festival Community Art Exhibition.		
	Undertake a review of the cultural events program for 2022/23 and develop the program for 2023/24.		

Outcome 1-5 Cultural and diverse

You understand, value and celebrate the City's unique Aboriginal and other diverse cultures and histories.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Reconciliation Action Plan	Reconciliation Action Plan		
A new plan which will set out the City's commitmen	to reconciliation with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.		
Q1 Progress the development of the draft	Held a planning meeting with the Chair of the Reconciliation Action Plan	\checkmark	
Reconciliation Action Plan.	Community Reference Group. A meeting is scheduled to take place in quarter 2.		
Q2 Progress the development of the draft	The Reconciliation Action Plan Community Reference Group meeting was held in	\checkmark	
Reconciliation Action Plan.	November 2022. Commenced drafting the Reconciliation Action Plan strategy and		
	action framework.		
Q3 Progress the development of the draft			
Reconciliation Action Plan.			
Q4 Present the draft Reconciliation Action Plan to			
Council seeking endorsement.			

MILES	TONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
NAIDO	OC Week			
Events	Events and programs to mark national NAIDOC Week which celebrates and recognises the history, culture and achievements of Aborig			
	orres Strait Islander peoples.		Ū	
	eliver the NAIDOC Week Launch event as part	Held the NAIDOC Week Launch on 4 July 2022, with 300 attendees and an overall	✓	
of	the civic functions program.	experience rating of 67%.		
D	eliver NAIDOC Week events as part of the	The following NAIDOC Week events were delivered in the quarter as part of the	✓	
CL	ultural events program.	cultural events program, with a total of 798 attendees:		
		In Conversation — 22 attendees		
		BILYA KAATIJIN — 190 attendees; overall experience rating of 94%		
		 Yarning Session with Justin Martin — 32 attendees; overall experience rating of 100% 		
		Art activity — 25 attendees		
		Cultural Walk at Lake Joondalup with Justin Martin — 24 attendees; overall		
		experience of 100%		
		Sunday Serenades — 131 attendees		
		Walk Lake Goollelal with Olman Walley — 33 attendees; overall experience		
		rating of 100%		
00		Wundabaa Gaay-Galgaa — 41 attendees; overall experience rating of 100%.		
Q2				
Q3				
Q4	achin coromonico			
	nship ceremonies	of Home Affairs each month (or more often) where residents who are becoming new	, oitizono	
	he Australian citizenship pledge of commitment.		Cilizeris	
	eliver scheduled citizenship ceremonies for the	Delivered 3 citizenship ceremonies in the quarter, with 222 residents becoming	─	
	Jarter.	Australian citizens.		
	eliver scheduled citizenship ceremonies for the	No citizenship ceremonies were required to be delivered in the quarter. This was	✓	
	uarter.	due to reduced numbers of people eligible to become Australian citizens. Those		
-1.		eligible will be included in the Australia Day Citizenship Ceremony in the next		
		quarter.		
Q3 D	eliver scheduled citizenship ceremonies for the			
	uarter.			
Q4 D	eliver scheduled citizenship ceremonies for the			
	uarter.			

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Civic functions A series of events and corporate functions we deliver interest.	throughout the year to mark important dates, significant milestones and matters	of civic
Q1 Deliver civic functions as required.	Delivered the following civic functions in the quarter: NAIDOC Week flag-raising event Burns Beach Coastal Path catch-up with the Burns Beach Residents Association Queens Jubilee tree planting event Appreciation functions for surf clubs and conservation groups.	✓
 Q2 Deliver scheduled program of civic functions for the quarter, including: • Invitation Art Prize VIP Event • Remembrance Day Memorial Service 	Delivered the following civic functions in this quarter: Invitation Art Prize VIP Event Remembrance Day Memorial Service Community end of year function Appreciation function – Library and City volunteers.	~
Deliver other civic functions as required.	 The following other civic functions were delivered this quarter: Faith leaders round table West Perth Football Club Congratulations Reception. 	✓
 Q3 Deliver scheduled program of civic functions for the quarter, including: Valentine's Concert VIP Event Joondalup Festival VIP Event Community Art Exhibition VIP Event Deliver other civic functions as required. 		
 Q4 Deliver scheduled program of civic functions for the quarter, including: ANZAC Day Dawn Service Joondalup Dinner Deliver other civic functions as required. 		

2. ENVIRONMENT

OUR GOAL

We have a beautiful natural environment which we care for and protect. We demonstrate best-practice in sustainability and environmental management. Our community is actively involved in conservation and sustainability initiatives and we share responsibility for preserving our natural assets for future generations.

YOUR OUTCOMES

2-1 Managed and protected

You value and enjoy the biodiversity in local bushland, wetland and coastal areas.

2-2 Clean and sustainable

You are supported to minimise waste and live sustainably in a clean environment.

2-3 Responsible and efficient

You benefit from a responsible and efficient use of natural resources.

2-4 Resilient and prepared

You understand and are prepared for the impacts of climate change and natural disasters.

Outcome 2-1 Managed and protected

You value and enjoy the biodiversity in local bushland, wetland and coastal areas.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Environment Plan		
A plan which outlines the City's commitment to conser	ving, enhancing and rehabilitating the City of Joondalup's natural assets to ensure th	ne long-
term protection of the environment for future generation	ns.	
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the	The following actions from the Environment Plan 2014–2019 were implemented in	✓
Environment Plan 2014–2019 for the quarter.	the quarter:	
	Delivered the Community Funding Program, which has a sustainable	
	communities funding priority.	
Commence development of a new Environment	Commenced development of a new Environment Strategy with investigations into	✓
Strategy.	new key performance indicators.	

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Environment Plan 2014–2019 for the quarter.	The following actions from the Environment Plan 2014–2019 were implemented in the quarter: • Launched the Waterwise Verge Rebate Program. • Delivered a Waterwise Verge Garden workshop.	✓
	Undertake an annual review of the Environment Plan 2014–2019 for 2021/22 and present key achievements to Elected Members.	The annual review of the Environment Plan for 2021/22 was completed. Key achievements from the Environment Plan will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter via the State of the Environment Report 2021/22.	✓
	Present the proposed objectives and themes for the new Environment Strategy to the Strategic Community Reference Group for discussion and feedback.	Presented environmental challenges and opportunities to the Strategic Community Reference Group for discussion and feedback to inform the development of the new Environment Strategy on 21 November 2022.	✓
	Progress development of the draft Environment Strategy.	Continued to progress the development of the new Environment Strategy, including drafting objectives and a framework for the Strategy.	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Environment Plan 2014–2019 for the quarter.		
	Progress development of the draft Environment Strategy.		
Q4	Environment Plan 2014–2019 for the quarter.		
	Present the draft Environment Strategy to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Weed Management Plan A plan which details an integrated weed management approach which prevents, monitors and controls the spread of weeds within the City of Joondalup.			
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Weed Management Plan 2016 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Weed Management Plan 2016 were implemented in the quarter: Commenced the City's non-chemical treatment for the control of weeds in nominated locations including the use of steam and hot water control. Participated in the Local Government Herbicide Use and Integrated Weed Management Working Group and involvement in their local government weed management promotional video. Promoted the Spring has Sprung weed management campaign to encourage residents to control weeds on private property and remove weeds before they seed and spread. 	√
	Undertake community consultation on the draft Weed Management Plan 2022–2032.	Community consultation on the draft Weed Management Plan is scheduled to commence in quarter 2 following Council endorsement of the draft plan.	✓
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Weed Management Plan 2016 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Weed Management Plan 2016 were implemented in the quarter: Continued the City's non-chemical treatment for the control of weeds in nominated locations, including the use of steam and hot water control. 	✓
	Undertake an annual review of the Weed Management Plan 2016 for 2021/22 and present key achievements to Elected Members	The annual review of the Weed Management Plan 2016 was completed for 2021/22. Key achievements from the Weed Management Plan will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter via the State of the Environment Report 2021/22.	✓
	Present the draft Weed Management Plan 2022–2032 to Council seeking endorsement.	Presented the draft Weed Management Plan 2022–2032 to Council on 15 November 2022 seeking endorsement to conduct community consultation. Community consultation was conducted on the draft Plan from 24 November–14 December 2022.	✓
	Commence implementation of the Weed Management Plan 2022–2032.	The draft Weed Management Plan will be presented to Council seeking endorsement to finalise the Plan in the next quarter.	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Weed Management Plan 2022–2032 for the quarter.	'	
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Weed Management Plan 2022–2032 for the quarter.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
A se	servation Area, Hillarys-Kallaroo Foreshore Reser	y values across a number of sites, including Central Park, Craigie Bushland, Hepburr rve, Lilburne Park, Marmion Foreshore Reserve, Mullaloo Foreshore Reserve, Ocear to Foreshore Reserve, and Warwick Open Space Bushland.	
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the natural area management plans for the quarter.	 The following ongoing actions were delivered in the quarter: Completed selective herbicide control of introduced grassy weeds, with 120 hectares of grass weeds sprayed. Commenced work on firebreak maintenance, including breaks being brush cut and herbicide applied. Applied herbicide to bulbous weeds in a number of reserves, which will continue in quarter 2. 	✓
	Commence preparation of ecological surveys in Mullaloo Foreshore Reserve and Lilburne Park to inform updates to the natural area management plans.	Conducted flora surveys and vegetation condition assessments in Lilburne Park (Duncraig) and Mullaloo Foreshore Reserve (Mullaloo).	✓
	Progress development of the draft Iluka–Burns Beach Foreshore Reserve Management Plan.	Drafted the Iluka–Burns Beach Foreshore Reserve Management Plan, to be progressed in quarter 2 or quarter 3.	✓
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the natural area management plans for the quarter.	 The following ongoing actions were delivered in the quarter: Undertook all bushland firebreaks required by regulation. Brush-cut and/or treated broadleaf and bulbous weeds that add to bushfire fuel loads. Undertook bushland fence maintenance. 	✓
	Progress preparation of ecological surveys in Mullaloo Foreshore Reserve and Lilburne Park to inform updates to the Natural Area Management Plans.	Provided oversight to the consultant preparing reports on ecological surveys at Mullaloo Foreshore Reserve (Mullaloo) and Lilburne Park (Duncraig).	✓
	Progress development of the draft Iluka–Burns Beach Foreshore Reserve Management Plan.	Progressed development of the Iluka-Burns Beach Foreshore Reserve Management Plan which will be presented to Council seeking endorsement for community consultation in quarter 4.	✓
	Undertake an annual review of the Natural Area Management Plans for 2021/22 and present key achievements to Elected Members.	Completed the annual review of Natural Area Management Plans for 2021/22. Key achievements from Natural Area Management Plans will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter via the State of the Environment Report 2021/22.	√

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the natural area management plans for the quarter.		
	Progress preparation of ecological surveys in Mullaloo Foreshore Reserve and Lilburne Park		
	to inform updates to the Natural Area Management Plans.		
	Progress development of the draft Iluka–Burns Beach Foreshore Reserve Management Plan.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the natural area management plans for the quarter.		
	Present the draft Iluka–Burns Beach Foreshore Reserve Management Plan to Elected Members		
	seeking endorsement for community consultation.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
A jo	Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan A joint plan with the City of Wanneroo which provides a holistic and long-term strategic framework to improve catchment health and protect the diverse values of Yellagonga Regional Park.				
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026.	 The following actions from the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026 were implemented in the quarter: Conducted water quality monitoring in Yellagonga Regional Park by Edith Cowan University. Commenced the Saving our Snake-necked Turtles project in partnership with the WA Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions and the City of Wanneroo. Commenced the annual review of the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan. 	✓		
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026.	 The following actions from the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026 were implemented in the quarter: Continued the Saving our Snake-necked Turtles project in partnership with the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions and the City of Wanneroo. Continued water quality monitoring in Yellagonga Regional Park (Edgewater) by Edith Cowan University, in collaboration with the City of Wanneroo. 			
	Undertake an annual review of the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026, in partnership with the City of Wanneroo, and present key achievements to Elected Members.	Completed the annual review of the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan 2021–2026. Key achievements from the Plan will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter via the State of the Environment Report 2021/22.	✓		
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026.				
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Yellagonga Integrated Catchment Management Plan for 2021–2026.				

Outcome 2-2 Clean and sustainable

You are supported to minimise waste and live sustainably in a clean environment.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Waste Management Plan		
[milestones removed — CJ186-1/22 refers]		
Bulk hard waste review		
Review of current bulk waste service delivery and con	nsideration of options.	
Q1 Present the outcomes of the bulk hard waste	The bulk hard waste review was presented to Elected Members in quarter 4 of	\checkmark
review to Elected Members seeking feedback.	2021/22 and to Council in quarter 1 of 2022/23 (CJ131-08/22 refers).	
Q2		
Q3		
Q4		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
A pr	Community waste education A program of activities and events the City supports to educate community members to reduce their waste to landfill, reduce waste contamination and influence behaviour change.			
Q1		 The following activities and events were delivered in the quarter: Beach clean-up at Sorrento Beach Provided a waste education stand at the Little Feet Festival, Kambarang Festival and Waterwise verge workshop Delivered 6 school sessions, 10 classes 'rubbish to resource' by an external consultant Posted 12 social media items on waste education Design a bin sticker completed in quarter and stickers placed on bins. 	•	
Q2	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of the waste education program for the quarter.		✓	
Q3 Q4	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of the waste education program for the quarter. Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of the waste education program for the quarter.			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
Env	Environmental education program				
A pi	A program that delivers a range of environmental education initiatives for residents, schools, businesses and the broader community. The program				
enc	ourages sustainability related to biodiversity, waste	, water, transport and climate change.			
Q1	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of	The following activities and events were delivered in the quarter:	✓		
	the environmental education program for the	Finalised the Environmental Education Program schedule for 2022/23.			
	quarter.	Commenced planning for the delivery of a Waterwise Verge Rebate Program.			
Q2	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of	The following activities and events were delivered in the quarter:	✓		
	the environmental education program for the	Delivered a Waterwise Verge Garden workshop.			
	quarter.	Launched the Waterwise Verge Rebate Program.			
Q3	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of				
	the environmental education program for the				
	quarter.				
Q4	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of				
	the environmental education program for the				
	quarter.				

Outcome 2-3 Responsible and efficient

You benefit from a responsible and efficient use of natural resources.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
City Water Plan 2016–2021 A plan that guides the sustainable management of the City's water practices and provides strategic direction for the delivery of water conservation and water quality improvement initiatives within the City over a five-year period.			
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the City Water Plan 2016–2021 for the quarter.	The following actions from the City Water Plan 2016–2021 were implemented in the quarter: • Engaged an external consultant to report on the City's environmental performance.	✓	
Q2 Implement scheduled actions from the City Water Plan 2016–2021 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the City Water Plan 2016–2021 were implemented in the quarter: Provided a presentation at the Waterwise Forum hosted by the Water Corporation and the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation regarding the City's Central Smart Irrigation Control System. Received an Environmental Leadership and Sustainability award from the Local Government Professionals WA. 	✓	
Q3 Implement scheduled actions from the City Water Plan 2016–2021 for the quarter.			
Q4 Commence a review of the City Water Plan 2016–2021 in alignment with the draft Environment Strategy under the Waterwise Council Program.			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	terwise Council Program	and Environmental Degulation and Water Corneration to support level governments	to
	rove water efficiency and help create waterwise cor	and Environmental Regulation and Water Corporation to support local governments temporations.	10
Q1		Promoted the City's smart control irrigation system through an Irrigation Australia publication and as a case study on the Water Corporation's website.	✓
	Submit application to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation and Water Corporation seeking re-accreditation under the Waterwise Council Program.	An application to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation and the Water Corporation was not submitted in the quarter. This will be submitted in quarter 2.	✓
Q2	Implement planned initiatives and actions as part of the Waterwise Council Program for the quarter.	Launched the Waterwise Verge Rebate Program which is eligible for Waterwise Greening Scheme funding from the Water Corporation.	✓
	[milestone from previous quarter] Submit application to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation and Water Corporation seeking re-accreditation under the Waterwise Council Program.	An application was submitted to the WA Department of Water and Environmental Regulation seeking re-accreditation under the Waterwise Council Program.	✓
Q3	Implement planned initiatives and actions as part of the Waterwise Council Program for the quarter.		
Q4	of the Waterwise Council Program for the quarter.		
	porate waste reduction vities and initiatives to reduce the amount of corpor	rate waste the City generates.	
Q1			
Q2	Undertake a review of the City's corporate waste		✓
	and implement reduction and recovery targets.	resourcing constraints. The review will be undertaken in quarter 4.	
Q3			
Q4			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Enν	rironmental performance reporting		
A p	ogram of monitoring and reporting to record the Cit	y's corporate consumption of water, energy and greenhouse gas emissions.	
Q1	I I	Collated and reviewed the environmental performance data for 2021/22 for use in	\checkmark
	data for 2021/22 and use to inform	the Annual Report and State of the Environment Report.	
	improvements in workforce practices.		
Q2	Collate and review environmental performance	Collated and reviewed environmental performance data for 2021/22 for use in the	\checkmark
	data for 2021/22 and use to inform	State of the Environment Report.	
	improvements in workforce practices.		
Q3	Collate and review environmental performance		
	data for 2021/22 and use to inform		
	improvements in workforce practices.		
Q4	Collate and review environmental performance		
	data for 2021/22 and use to inform		
	improvements in workforce practices.		

Outcome 2-4 Resilient and prepared

You understand and are prepared for the impacts of climate change and natural disasters.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Climate Change Strategy A strategy which guides the City's planning for the futu- infrastructure, health services, water management, em	re impacts of climate change across a range of areas relevant to local government, in pergency management, and the natural environment	including
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the Climate Change Strategy 2014–2019.	The following actions from the Climate Change Strategy 2014–2019 were implemented in the quarter: Confirmed the Power Purchase Agreement for the purchase of renewable energy.	✓
Present the draft Climate Change Plan 2022–2032 to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation.	The draft Climate Change Plan was not presented to Elected Members in the quarter. Development of the plan has commenced and will continue in quarter 2. It is anticipated the draft plan will be provided to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation in quarter 3.	√

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Climate Change Strategy 2014–2019.	 The following actions from the Climate Change Strategy 2014-2019 were implemented in the quarter: Completed improvements to the City's corporate emissions data using an environmental performance monitoring system. Converted 30 public accessway lights to energy efficient LED lighting which were also incorporated into the City's wireless control system to allow for increased efficiencies. 	✓
	Undertake an annual review of the Climate Change Strategy 2014–2019 for 2021/22 and present key achievements to Elected Members.	The annual review of the Climate Change Strategy 2014–2109 has been completed. Key achievements from the Strategy will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter via the State of the Environment Report 2021/22.	√
	Undertake community consultation on the draft Climate Change Plan 2022–2032.	Community consultation on the draft Climate Change Plan 2022–2032 was not conducted in the quarter. Development of the Plan will continue in quarter 3. It is anticipated that the draft Plan will be provided to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation in quarter 3	√
	Present the draft Climate Change Plan 2022–2032 to Council seeking endorsement.	The draft Climate Change Plan 2022–2032 was not presented to Elected Members in the quarter. Development of the Plan will continue in quarter 3. It is anticipated that the draft Plan will be provided to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation in quarter 3.	~
	Commence implementation of the Climate Change Plan 2022–2032.	Implementation of the draft Climate Change Plan 2022-2032 did not commence in the quarter. Development of the Plan will continue in quarter 3. It is anticipated that the draft Plan will be provided to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation in quarter 3.	√
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Climate Change Plan 2022–2032.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Climate Change Plan 2022–2032.		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
bushfire-related risk within the City of Joondalup.	ed and efficient approach to the identification, assessment and treatment of assets ex	kposed to
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023.	 The following actions were implemented in the quarter: Submitted a funding application for the Department of Fire and Emergency Services Mitigation Activity Fund Grants Program 2022/23 Round 2. Completed hazard reduction burns by The Montessori School (Kingsley) and Pinnaroo Valley Memorial Park (Padbury). Issued a Section 33 Notice to the Water Corporation for bushfire hazard reduction works to further protect the Beenyup wastewater treatment process bio-gas methane storage tank. Conducted ongoing post-fire weed spraying within the three reserves that had unplanned bushfires — Warwick Open Space (Warwick), Shepherds Bush Reserve (Kingsley), and Alfreton Park (Duncraig). Continued liaison with the Department of Fire and Emergency Services regarding firebreak improvements, fuel reduction works, and increasing the number of hazard reduction grass tree burns within City managed reserves. Updated the Department of Fire and Emergency Services Bushfire Risk Management System regarding treatments completed and planned tenure blind Developed the City's 2022/23 internal bushfire mitigation schedule. Reviewed and updated all relevant documents ready for the bushfire season (notices, correspondence, brochure, website) for the Community Safety — Field Services team to progress. 	

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023.	 The following actions from the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023 were implemented in the quarter: Continued ongoing post-fire weed spraying within the three reserves that had unplanned bushfires: Warwick Open Space (Warwick), Shepherds Bush Reserve (Kingsley), and Alfreton Park (Duncraig). Received confirmation that the funding application for the Department of Fire and Emergency Services Mitigation Activity Fund Grants Program 2022/23 Round 2 had been successful. 	✓
	Undertake an annual review of the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023 and present key achievements to Elected Members.	The review of the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023 will occur once the assessment of the annual review process for the Bushfire Risk Management Plan has been finalised. Key achievements of the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023 for 2021/22 will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter via the State of the Environment Report 2021/22.	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2018–2023.		
A pl		mpacts of climate change along the coastline. The plan aims to ensure the City is ads, and to ensure the risk to City of Joondalup infrastructure and assets is minimised.	
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026.	 The following actions from the Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026 were implemented in the quarter: Obtained funding and engaged contractors for the Sand Bypassing Program and Coastal Monitoring Program. 	√
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026.	 The following actions from the Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026 were implemented in the quarter: Received notification of successfully obtaining a Coastal and Estuarine Risk Mitigation Program grant of \$943,697 for a Coastal Risk Adaptation Program to maintain high and medium priority groynes and sea walls. Moved 9,926 cubic metres of sand from Sorrento Beach to Hillarys Beach in October and November 2022 to address the recession identified at Hillarys Beach Park and Pinnaroo Point. Implemented the Coastal Monitoring Program, including shoreline mapping and photographic monitoring in October 2022. 	✓

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Coastal Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Coastal		
	Infrastructure Adaptation Plan 2018–2026.		
	stal Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation F		
		h identifies areas and assets that could potentially be impacted by coastal erosion a	
		sea level rise. The plan provides recommendations and actions for how the City can	respond
	adapt to these hazards.		
Q1		Community consultation on the draft Coastal Hazard Risk Management and	✓
	Coastal Hazard Risk Management and	Adaptation Plan was not undertaken in the quarter as the draft plan has not been	
	Adaptation Plan.	completed. Development will progress in quarter 3 and it is anticipated that the draft plan will be presented to Elected Members seeking endorsement for	
		community consultation in quarter 3.	
Q2	Present the draft Coastal Hazard Risk	A draft Coastal Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan was not presented	√
QZ	Management and Adaptation Plan to Council	to Council in the quarter as the draft plan has not been completed. Development	
	seeking endorsement.	will progress in quarter 3 and it is anticipated that the draft plan will be presented	
	3	to Elected Members seeking endorsement for community consultation in quarter 3.	
	Commence implementation of the Coastal	Implementation of the Coastal Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan did	✓
	Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan.	not commence in the quarter as the draft plan has not been completed or	
		endorsed by Council. Development will progress in quarter 3 and it is anticipated	
		that the draft plan will be presented to Elected Members seeking endorsement for	
		community consultation in quarter 3.	
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Coastal		
	Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan.		
Q4	Implement scheduled actions from the Coastal		
	Hazard Risk Management and Adaptation Plan.		

3. PLACE

OUR GOAL

We have well-planned and attractive suburbs and streetscapes, supported by a range of integrated transport options. Our urban landscapes are connected, useable and accessible. A high standard of liveability is enjoyed by our community who can access quality facilities and public open spaces.

YOUR OUTCOMES

3-1 Connected and convenient

You have access to a range of interconnected transport options.

3-2 Well-planned and adaptable

You enjoy well-designed, quality buildings and have access to diverse housing options in your neighbourhood.

3-3 Attractive and leafy

You have access to quality public open spaces and enjoy appealing streetscapes.

3-4 Functional and accessible

You have access to quality community facilities that are functional and adaptable.

Outcome 3-1 Connected and convenient

You have access to a range of interconnected transport options.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Integrated Transport Strategy	and information of making advances and infractive at use decisions in the City over the	
20–30 years.	and inform strategic policy, advocacy and infrastructure decisions in the City over th	ie next
Q1 Progress development of a draft Integrated Transport Strategy 2022–2032.	Completed the technical working document for the Integrated Transport Strategy and commenced development of the consolidated public document.	√
Q2 Finalise development of a draft Integrated Transport Strategy 2022–2032.	Development of the draft Integrated Transport Strategy that consolidates the advice and recommendations from the consultant is being reviewed.	√
Q3 Present the draft Integrated Transport Strategy 2022–2032 to Elected Members seeking feedback.		
Q4 Present the draft Integrated Transport Strategy 2022–2032 to Council seeking endorsement.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Bike Plan A plan which provides the long-term vision, strategic framework and projects we will implement to make bike riding a part of everyday life and move us towards becoming a bike-friendly city.			
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the Bike Plan 2016–2021 for the quarter.	 The following actions from the Bike Plan 2016–2021 were implemented in the quarter: Commenced liaison with the Public Transport Authority regarding potential funding for station access improvements for cyclists. Progressed the design of the coastal bike pathway as part of the State Government's election commitment. Progressed the design of the Joondalup Drive shared pathway between Treetop Avenue and Wedgewood Drive (Edgewater). 	•
	Undertake a review of the Bike Plan 2016–2021.	Commenced a review of the Bike Plan which is scheduled to be completed in quarter 2.	✓
	Commence development of a new Bike Plan 2022–2032.	The development of a new Bike Plan commenced, with the development to be aligned with the outcomes and positions that will be adopted as part of the Integrated Transport Strategy.	✓
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Bike Plan 2016–2021 for the quarter.	 The following scheduled actions from the Bike Plan 2016–2021 were implemented in the quarter: Liaised with the Department of Transport for WA Bike Network co-funded pathway infrastructure projects: Hillarys to Burns Beach coastal shared pathway upgrade Eddystone Avenue (Craigie) shared pathway upgrade A future Whitfords Avenue (Kingsley) shared pathway upgrade. Commenced design of several shared pathways in preparation for future construction, including the Hillarys cycle network expansion. Received monthly bike count data for seven sites on City shared pathways. 	✓
Q3	Progress development of the draft Bike Plan 2022–2032. Implement scheduled actions from the Bike Plan	Progressed the development phase of the draft Bike Plan 2022–2032 in line with the Integrated Transport Strategy outcomes and positions.	✓
QJ	2016–2021 for the quarter. Present the draft Bike Plan 2022–2032 to Elected Members seeking feedback.		

M	ILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q	·		
	2016–2021 for the quarter.		
	Present the draft Bike Plan 2022–2032 to		
	Council seeking endorsement.		
	utdoor Youth Recreation Strategy		
Α	<u> </u>	proutdoor youth recreation within the City of Joondalup.	
Q		Work continued on the preparation of a business case for a skate park at the	√
	Youth Recreation Strategy 2021 for the quarter.	Woodvale trotting track and a business case for urban bike trails.	
Q:		The following scheduled actions from the Outdoor Youth Recreation Strategy 2021	\checkmark
	Youth Recreation Strategy 2021 for the quarter.	were implemented this quarter:	
		Presented preliminary business case for a skate facility at the Woodvale trotting	
		track to Council at the 13 December 2022 Council meeting (CJ199-12/22	
		refers). Council determined to progress further investigations into an incidental	
		skate facility at Chichester Park, Woodvale.	
		Completed upgrade projects at BMX tracks at Galston Park (Duncraig),	
		Candlewood Park (Joondalup), and Menteith Park (Kinross).	
		Commenced design works for BMX track upgrades at Quarry Ramble Park	
		(Joondalup).	
Q	3 Implement scheduled actions from the Outdoor		
	Youth Recreation Strategy 2021 for the quarter.		
Q	Implement scheduled actions from the Outdoor		
	Youth Recreation Strategy 2021 for the quarter.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Integrated parking management system				
A new centralised system to manage all parking-related activities, including the replacement of current parking ticket machines, incorporating pay-				
	phone/plate technology, and providing an enhanced			
Q1	Advertise the tender for a new parking	The tender for a new parking management system was not advertised in the	✓	
	management system.	quarter. The tender specification has been prepared and is scheduled to be advertised in quarter 2.		
Q2	Receive the tenders submitted for the new	The tender for a new parking management system was not advertised in the	✓	
	parking management system.	quarter. The tender specification has been prepared and a briefing for key stakeholders is being prepared for quarter 3 prior to advertising.		
Q3	Evaluate the tenders submitted for the new	state rolders is being prepared for quarter 5 prior to devertising.		
	parking management system.			
Q4				
	parking management system from the tenders			
	submitted.			
	Commence implementation of the new parking			
	management system.			
	nd safety education			
		raise awareness about road safety issues and promote road safety messages.		
Q1	·	The following activities were delivered in the quarter:	Y	
	the road safety education program for the quarter.	• Received a road safety grant in the quarter that will be used as bike vouchers at the Little Feet Festival in quarter 2.		
Q2	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of		\checkmark	
	the road safety education program for the	program in the quarter:		
	quarter.	Conducted a competition at the Kambarang Concert where entrants were		
		required to complete a road safety quiz and make a pledge to bike safety to		
		enter the draw to win a bike voucher.		
Q3	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of			
	the road safety education program for the			
0.4	quarter.			
Q4	Deliver scheduled activities and events as part of			
	the road safety education program for the			
	quarter.			

Outcome 3-2 Well-planned and adaptable

You enjoy well-designed, quality buildings and have access to diverse housing options in your neighbourhood.

STATUS KEY		
Milestone complete		
Milestone behind schedule		
On budget	✓	
Over budget	A	
Under budget	▼	

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
A re	Local Planning Strategy review A review of the City's Local Planning Strategy, including the Local Housing Strategy and Local Commercial Strategy, to ensure the ongoing			
Q1	licability of the stated strategic direction for land use Appoint an external consultant to manage the community consultation for phase 1 of the Local Planning Strategy review.	Appointed an external consultant to manage the community consultation for Phase 1 of the Local Planning Strategy review.	✓	
	Present a draft Community Consultation Plan to Council seeking endorsement.	A draft Community Consultation Plan was endorsed by Council at the 16 August 2022 Council meeting (CJ120-08/22 refers).	✓	
Q2	Undertake community consultation on phase 1 of the Local Planning Strategy review.	Community consultation on phase 1 of the Local Planning Strategy review was completed by an external consultant in the quarter.	✓	
Q3	Use the outcomes from the community consultation to inform development of a technical scope for phase 2 of the Local Planning Strategy review.			
	Present the technical scope for phase 2 of the Local Planning Strategy review to Council seeking endorsement.			
Q4	Prepare a request for tender for a consultant team to undertake phase 2 of the Local Planning Strategy review.			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Local planning policies (relating to residential development) review				
A review of some of the City's local planning policies that relate to residential development, following implementation of the new Residential Design				
Codes by the Western Australian Planning Commission. Q1				
Q2	Commence a review of the City's local planning policies related to residential development (including the Residential Local Planning Policy, and the Development in Housing Opportunity Areas Local Planning Policy) to respond to the changes to the State Planning Framework following introduction of the Medium Density Code.	Commenced a review of the City's local planning policies related to residential development. The information from this review will form our response to changes to the State Planning Framework ahead of the formal release and introduction of the Medium Density Code, which is expected to occur in quarter 3 or quarter 4.	✓	
	Present the outcomes of the review of the City's local planning policies related to residential development to the Policy Committee seeking endorsement of Council.			
Q4				
State planning reform				
	A program of major legislative, regulatory and policy changes to Western Australia's planning system.			
Q1	planning reform process, as required.	As part of the State planning reform process, the City participated in the Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage Planning Reform Stakeholder Reference Groups on the following topics: Consistent local planning schemes Local planning policies Consistent approach for the use and application of discretion.	v	
Q2	Implement actions resulting from the State planning reform process, as required.	Implemented amendments to the City's Planning Consultation Local Planning Policy, adopted by Council at the 13 December 2022 Council meeting (CJ224-12/22 refers). These amendments were required by amendments to the <i>Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015</i> , ensuring engagement and consultation processes are consistent and effective.	√	
Q3	Implement actions resulting from the State planning reform process, as required.			
Q4	Implement actions resulting from the State		+	
	planning reform process, as required.			

Outcome 3-3 Attractive and leafy

You have access to quality public open spaces and enjoy appealing streetscapes.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Public Open Space Framework A new framework which will classify the City's public open spaces according to primary function and manner of use, and guide the allocation		
infrastructure assets.		
Q1 Present a draft Public Open Space Framework to Elected Members seeking feedback.	A draft Public Open Space Framework was not presented to Elected Members seeking feedback in this quarter. The draft framework is scheduled to be presented to Elected Members in November 2022.	✓
Q2 Present a draft Public Open Space Framework to Council seeking endorsement.	The draft Public Open Space Framework was presented to Elected Members for feedback in November 2022 and was endorsed by Council at the 13 December 2022 Council meeting (CJ209-12/22 refers).	✓
Q3		
Q4		
Leafy City program		
A program to plant trees along residential streets with	he aim of increasing leafy canopy cover to help mitigate the heat-island effect.	
Q1		
Q2		
Q3		
Q4 Deliver scheduled program of tree planting as part of the Leafy City program for the quarter.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	odvale skate facility business case		
A bu	A business case for the establishment of a new skate facility at the trotting track at Woodvale Drive, Woodvale.		
Q1	Present a business case for a new skate facility	A business case was not presented to Elected Members in the quarter.	✓
	to Elected Members seeking a determination on	Preparation of a business case progressed and is intended to be presented to	
	whether to progress.	Elected Members in October 2022 and Council at the 13 December 2022 Council meeting.	
Q2	[milestones from previous quarter] Present a	Presented the preliminary business case for a skate facility at the Woodvale	✓
	business case for a new skate facility to Elected	trotting track to Council at the 13 December 2022 meeting (CJ199-12/22 refers).	
	Members seeking a determination on whether to	Council determined to progress further investigations into an incidental skate	
	progress.	facility at Chichester Park, Woodvale.	
Q3			
Q4			
Urb	an bike trails business case		
A bu	isiness case for the establishment of a BMX/mount	ain bike hub and interconnected urban bike trails through Padbury, Mullaloo and Cra	aigie.
Q1	Commence preparation of a business case for	Held a youth design workshop on 1 August 2022 to inform the preparation of a	✓
	urban bike trails.	business case for urban bike trails.	
Q2	Progress preparation of the business case for	Developed masterplan bike trails options for evaluation based on outputs from the	✓
	urban bike trails.	youth design workshops. Engaged a consultant to undertake concept design work	
		and costings for facility categories to inform the business case.	
Q3	Present the business case for urban bike trails to		
	Elected Members seeking a determination on		
	whether to progress.		
Q4	· •		

Outcome 3-4 Functional and accessible

You have access to quality community facilities that are functional and adaptable.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	d optimisation eriodic review of City freehold and managed Crown	land to identify optimisation, potential rationalisation and acquisition opportunities.	
Q1	Progress the sale or lease of Lot 12223 (12) Blackwattle Parade, Padbury.	Engaged external expertise to review the documentation and process for the disposal of Lot 12223 (12) Blackwattle Parade (Padbury).	✓
	Investigate identified opportunities for optimisation of City freehold and managed Crown land.	Progressed investigations to identify opportunities for optimisation of City freehold and managed Crown land.	✓
	Progress actions for the disposal and acquisition of properties as endorsed by Council.	Identified vacant Crown land for the purpose of initiating potential acquisition negotiations with the relevant State Government departments.	✓
Q2	Investigate identified opportunities for optimisation of City freehold and managed Crown land.	Further investigations were undertaken on State Government owned land and the opportunity to acquire them.	✓
	Progress actions for the disposal and acquisition of properties as endorsed by Council.	No actions required for the disposal and acquisition of properties in the quarter.	✓
Q3	Investigate identified opportunities for optimisation of City freehold and managed Crown land.		
	Progress actions for the disposal and acquisition of properties as endorsed by Council.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q4	Investigate identified opportunities for optimisation of City freehold and managed Crown land.		
	Progress actions for the disposal and acquisition of properties as endorsed by Council.		
Pro	perty Management Framework		•
A fr	amework that defines the classifications for which C	City-owned and managed property is held, establishes the categories and associated	
		erty may be used and occupied, and promotes equitable, effective and sustainable	
	nagement practices for the use and occupation of C		
Q1	Negotiate and implement new and expired lease and licence agreements.	No lease or licence agreements were completed in the quarter. Continued negotiations of 3 lease agreements and 4 licence agreements. Commenced negotiations of 9 licence agreements.	✓
Q2	Negotiate and implement new and expired lease and licence agreements.	One lease was terminated during the quarter. Continued negotiations of 2 lease agreements and 13 licence agreements.	✓
Q3	Negotiate and implement new and expired lease and licence agreements.		
Q4	Negotiate and implement new and expired lease and licence agreements.		
Dro	perty Management Framework and Facility Hire	Subsidy Policy review	
A re		k and Facility Hire Subsidy Policy to ensure the ongoing efficient management of the	e City's
	Finalise the review of the Facility Hire Subsidy Policy.	Finalised the review of the Facility Hire Subsidy Policy in the quarter.	✓
	Present the outcomes of the review of the Facility Hire Subsidy Policy to Council seeking endorsement.	Presented the outcomes of the review of the Facility Hire Subsidy Policy to Council seeking endorsement of the revised Venue Hire Fees and Charges Policy at the 16 August 2022 Council meeting (CJ139-08/22 refers). The revised policy will come into effect from 1 January 2024. The City is now working with hirers to inform and guide them through the implementation of the revised policy.	✓
Q2	Finalise the review of the Property Management Framework.	Finalised the review of the Property Management Framework in the quarter.	✓
	Present the outcomes of the review of the Property Management Framework to Council seeking endorsement.	The reviewed Property Management Framework were endorsed by Council at the 15 November 2022 meeting (CJ193-11/22 refers). The City has commenced implementation of the revised framework through engagement with existing lessees and licensees.	✓
Q3			
Q4			

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	thridge Park Masterplan		
		onalisation of the existing outdated community facilities into a single new multi-purpo	ose
facil			
Q1	Progress the development of updated concept plans and cost estimates for Heathridge Park Masterplan.	Completed a review of the concept plans and conducted discussions with key stakeholders.	√
Q2	Finalise the development of updated concept plans and cost estimates for Heathridge Park Masterplan.	Following the activities completed in quarter 1, a report was prepared in quarter 2 to seek feedback from Elected Members on the project. The development of updated concept plans and cost estimates will be finalised in quarter 1 2023/24.	✓
	Present the updated concept plans and cost estimates for the Heathridge Park Masterplan to Elected Members seeking feedback.	A report outlining the review and stakeholder engagement in quarter 1 was presented to Elected Members at the Major Projects and Finance Committee on 28 November 2022 to seek feedback on the project. The updated concept plans and cost estimates will be presented to Elected Members for feedback in quarter 1 2023/24.	√
	Present the updated concept plans and cost estimates for the Heathridge Park Masterplan to Elected Members seeking a determination on whether to progress.		
Q4	Progress actions in relation to the Heathridge Masterplan as determined by Elected Members.		
Oce	an Reef Marina		
Con	struction of a world-class waterfront precinct provide	ling recreational, tourism, residential and boating facilities. This project is being man	aged by
Dev	elopmentWA with support and contributions provid		
Q1	Provide support to DevelopmentWA and undertake agreed activities to progress the development of the Marina as per the Development Agreement.	Continued liaison with DevelopmentWA and other stakeholders to ensure progress towards the finalisation of the Development Agreement. Progressed activities on the development of the Marina as required.	√
	Provide feedback and technical guidance to progress the necessary approvals for the development of the Marina.	Provided technical feedback and guidance as required by DevelopmentWA.	✓
	Explore development opportunities for land within the Marina that is owned or managed by the City.	Continued investigations into development opportunities as part of negotiations with DevelopmentWA and in accordance with the Development Agreement.	✓
	Present reports to Elected Members on the progress and status of the Marina as required.	No reports were required in the quarter.	✓

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Provide support to DevelopmentWA and undertake agreed activities to progress the development of the Marina as per the Development Agreement.	 The following activities to provide support to DevelopmentWA and progress the development of the Marina were undertaken in the quarter: Continued to liaise with DevelopmentWA and other stakeholders to finalise key documentation. Received and began reviewing the final draft of the Development Agreement and Land Transfer Deed; the final documents will be presented to Council for approval and execution in quarter 3. Advised of additional State Government funding for the Ocean Reef Marina project. Commenced reviewing the Ocean Reef Marina Place Activation Plan with comments to be provided to Development WA. 	•
	Provide feedback and technical guidance to progress the necessary approvals for the development of the Marina.	Continued to provide technical feedback and guidance as required by DevelopmentWA and other stakeholders to process the necessary approvals for the development of the Marina.	✓
	Explore development opportunities for land within the Marina that is owned or managed by the City.	Continued investigations into development opportunities for land within the Marina that is owned or managed by the City as part of negotiations with DevelopmentWA.	✓
	Present reports to Elected Members on the progress and status of the Marina as required.	Presented a report to Elected Members at the Major Projects and Finance Committee on 28 November 2022 on the progress and status of the Marina. Provided a tour of the Ocean Reef Marina site on 28 November 2022 for Elected Members to view the progress of the project.	√
Q3	Provide support to DevelopmentWA and undertake agreed activities to progress the development of the Marina as per the Development Agreement. Provide feedback and technical guidance to progress the necessary approvals for the		
	development of the Marina. Explore development opportunities for land		
	within the Marina that is owned or managed by the City.		
	Present reports to Elected Members on the progress and status of the Marina as required.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q4	undertake agreed activities to progress the development of the Marina as per the Development Agreement.		
	Provide feedback and technical guidance to progress the necessary approvals for the development of the Marina.		
	Explore development opportunities for land within the Marina that is owned or managed by the City.		
	Present reports to Elected Members on the progress and status of the Marina as required.		
	naroo Point food and beverage facility relopment of a new commercially-viable, high-qualit	y and environmentally-sustainable food and beverage facility at Pinnaroo Point, Hilla	ırys.
	Finalise the leasing arrangements with the developer to build a food and beverage facility at Pinnaroo Point.	Milestone completed in quarter 4 of the previous year.	✓
	Finalise the installation of utility services to the site at Pinnaroo Point.	Installation of utility services to the site not finalised in this quarter. Commenced the process for the installation of utility services to be completed in quarter 4.	✓
	Monitor the facility development milestones in accordance with the developer's lease agreement.	Continued to engage with the developer to monitor progress against the facility development milestones.	✓
Q2	Monitor the facility development milestones in accordance with the developer's lease agreement.	Continued to engage with the developer to monitor progress against the facility development milestones. Developer received a building permit and commenced site preparation for construction.	√
Q3	Monitor the facility development milestones in accordance with the developer's lease agreement.		
Q4	Monitor the facility development milestones in accordance with the developer's lease agreement.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Dev	Hawkins Park food and beverage facility elopment of a new commercially-viable, high-qualit ndalup.	y and environmentally-sustainable food and beverage facility at Neil Hawkins Park,	
Q1	Investigate land tenure matters for the potential lease of land suitable for a food and beverage facility at Neil Hawkins Park.	Commenced a review of current land tenure to align with current use.	√
Q2	Liaise with the WA Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage to resolve tenure issues for the site.	Continued to liaise with Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage to resolve tenure issues for the food and beverage facility site at Neil Hawkins Park.	✓
Q3	Liaise with the WA Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage to resolve tenure issues for the site.		
Q4	Undertake initial investigations towards the development of a food and beverage facility at Neil Hawkins Park.		
	ndalup City Centre Development — Boas Place stigations into future opportunities for the development	nent of Boas Place in the Joondalup City Centre to incorporate a variety of land uses	
Q1	Review the philosophy and parameters for the Joondalup City Centre Development — Boas Place project.	Commenced a visioning process to guide the review of the Boas Place philosophy and parameters.	√
Q2	Present the outcomes of the review of the project philosophy and parameters to Elected Members seeking feedback.	A report outlining the vision was presented to Elected Members at the Major Projects and Finance Committee on 28 November 2022 where the vision was endorsed. The project philosophies and parameters will be developed and presented to the Major Projects and Finance Committee in quarter 4.	✓
Q3	Progress actions in response to the updated project philosophy and parameters.		
Q4	Progress actions in response to the updated project philosophy and parameters.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	fy House land transfer and commercial express		
		House from the State Government to the City of Joondalup and the progression of ar	1
	ression of interest for a future commercial operator		
Q1	Progress negotiations with the WA State Government to facilitate the transfer of land and assets associated with Duffy House.	Held discussions with the Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage and the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions to identify an appropriate land curtilage to support the future transfer of a portion of Lot 69 (108) Duffy Terrace (Woodvale) to the City. A report will be presented to Council in quarter 2 to progress the project.	✓
Q2	Government to facilitate the transfer of land and assets associated with Duffy House.	Progressed actions to support the transfer of land with the Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage in the quarter. A report was presented to Council at the 18 October 2022 meeting (CJ179-10/22 refers) where support was provided for the transfer of a portion of Lot 69 (108) Duffy Terrace (Woodvale) to the City and the installation of conservation fencing, pathways and entry road works.	✓
Q3	Finalise negotiations with the WA State Government to facilitate the transfer of land and assets associated with Duffy House. Advertise an expression of interest for a		
0.4	commercial operator at the site.		
	Evaluate the expressions of interest submitted.		
Inve Wor	rks Operation Centre tenure arrangements estigations into securing alternative tenure arranger rks Operation Centre in Craigie.	nents with the WA State Government for the land leased by the City that accommod	ates the
Q1			
Q2			
Q3	Progress investigations into alternative tenure arrangements for the Works Operation Centre site.		
Q4	Progress investigations into alternative tenure arrangements for the Works Operation Centre site.		

4. ECONOMY

OUR GOAL

We are a global facing city with a prosperous and resilient economy. Our City is home to diverse industries that generate a wide-range of local job opportunities. We encourage creativity and innovation, and we support opportunities to build the City's brand as a popular business and tourism destination.

YOUR OUTCOMES

4-1 Prosperous and local

You feel supported to grow your business in the City.

4-2 Innovative and confident

You are attracted to the City's unique characteristics and potential and feel confident in investing.

4-3 Appealing and welcoming

You welcome residents, and local and international visitors to the City.

Outcome 4-1 Prosperous and local

You feel supported to grow your business in the City.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Eco	onomic Development Strategy		
A st	rategy to guide economic development activities w	thin the City by providing support to local business, stimulating investment, and driving	ing
eco	nomic growth.		
Q1	Implement scheduled actions from the	Delivered scheduled actions as part of the International Economic Development	✓
	Expanding Horizons: An Economic Development	Activity Plan, Digital City Plan, Destination City Plan, and Business Engagement	
	Strategy for a Global City (2012) for the quarter.	Program.	
	Undertake a review of the Expanding Horizons:	Progressed the review of the City's Economic Development Strategy. Prepared a	✓
	An Economic Development Strategy for a Global	report as part of this review and sought feedback from the Joint Economic	
	City (2012) to inform development of a new	Development Initiative. The outcomes will be used to inform the development of a	
	Economic Development Strategy.	new Economic Development Strategy.	
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the	Delivered scheduled actions as part of the International Economic Development	√
	Expanding Horizons: An Economic Development	Activity Plan, Digital City Plan, Destination City Plan, and Business Engagement	
	Strategy for a Global City (2012) for the quarter.	Program.	
	Commence development of the new Economic	Completed the Business Perception survey to inform the development of the new	\checkmark
	Development Strategy.	Economic Development Strategy. A consultant was engaged in quarter 2 to	
		progress the delivery of the new Economic Development Strategy.	

MI	LESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Expanding Horizons: An Economic Development		
	Strategy for a Global City (2012) for the quarter.		
	Finalise development of the draft Economic		
	Development Strategy.		
	Present the draft Economic Development		
	Strategy to Elected Members seeking		
	endorsement for community consultation.		
	Undertake community consultation on the draft Economic Development Strategy		
$\overline{\Omega}$	Present the draft Economic Development		
QП	Strategy to Council seeking endorsement.		
Bu	siness engagement		
		tate access to a range of support services and initiatives for sole traders, small and	medium-
siz	ed businesses.		
Q1	·	The following business events were attended by City Officers in the quarter:	\checkmark
	Business Engagement Program.	 Joondalup Business Association Coffee Connections, sundowner events and awards night 	
		Liberty Flexible Spaces networking lunch	
		Official opening of Linear Clinical Research	
		Launch of Nautica Hillarys.	
	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Buy Local Program.	Promoted and commenced improvements to the Joondalup Business Catalogue.	✓
	Develop and implement other relevant programs, as opportunities arise.	No other relevant programs and opportunities identified in the quarter.	✓

MII	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Business Engagement Program.	Hosted an End of Year Business Sundowner on 9 November 2022 at the Joondalup Reception Centre, highlighting the achievements of the City and the support that the City has provided to its business community.	✓
	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Buy Local Program.	 Implemented the following scheduled activities as part of the Buy Local Program: Sought proposals for improvements to the Joondalup Business Catalogue from providers. Commenced planning for business engagement as part of the 2023 Joondalup Festival. 	√
	Develop and implement other relevant programs, as opportunities arise.	The following opportunity regarding business engagement was implemented during the quarter: • Engaged with local businesses to participate in the Joondalup Innovation Challenge pitch night.	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Business Engagement Program.		
	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Buy Local Program.		
	Develop and implement other relevant programs, as opportunities arise.		
Q4	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Business Engagement Program.		
	Implement scheduled activities as part of the Buy Local Program.		
	Develop and implement other relevant programs, as opportunities arise.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Bre	promote networking opportunities.	nmunity to promote local engagement activities, provide information on key economic	c issues,
Q1	Develop the schedule and theming for delivery of two Business Forums in 2022/23.	Held discussions with WA AustCyber to deliver the first business forum in November 2022. The second business forum is scheduled for quarter 4, with theming to be determined.	√
Q2	Deliver Business Forum 1.	Delivered Business Forum 1 on 16 November 2022. The City partnered with AustCyber and the WA AustCyber Innovation Hub to present the November Business Forum as part of Australian Cyber Week. Over 160 people attended this event with a further 80 registered to view the event via livestream. The forum discussed the key challenges and opportunities of the cyber security sector in WA, nationally and globally, through exporting the City's cyber capabilities to the world.	√
Q3			
Q4			
	siness capacity and support thership events, initiatives and programs to deliver	training opportunities to local businesses.	
Q1	Implement the Small Business Friendly Approval Program in collaboration with the Small Business Development Corporation.		✓
	Present the quarterly report to the Small Business Development Corporation on the City's progress in implementing the Small Business Friendly Initiative.	Presented the quarterly report to the Small Business Friendly Corporation on the City's progress in implementing the Small Business Friendly Initiative.	✓
	Engage key partners to facilitate and support events and initiatives, to support businesses.	 Engaged with key partners in the quarter to facilitate and support the following events and initiatives: Sponsored the Joondalup Business Association's Annual Awards Gala. Partnered with the Joondalup Business Association and the Small Business Development Corporation to hold a business wellbeing event for RU OK Day. 	√
	Represent the City at strategic partnership events, as required.	Attended the following strategic partnership events in the quarter: • Future Female Leaders graduation event • Tourism Council WA leaders' luncheon in September 2022.	✓

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Implement the Small Business Friendly Approval Program in collaboration with the Small Business Development Corporation.	 Implemented the following action as part of the Small Business Friendly Approval Program in the quarter: Published the City's Small Business Approval Program Implementation Plan and presented the plan at the Joondalup Economic Development Initiative and the City of Joondalup Business sundowner. 	√
	Present the quarterly report to the Small Business Development Corporation on the City's progress in implementing the Small Business Friendly Initiative.	Presented the quarterly report to the Small Business Friendly Corporation on the City's progress in implementing the Small Business Friendly Initiative.	✓
	Engage key partners to facilitate and support events and initiatives, to support businesses.	Partnered with the Joondalup Business Association and the Small Business Development Corporation to hold an event designed to support the small business community. The Personal Wellness for Business Owners workshop focused on prioritising a wellness routine to achieve long-term business success.	√
	Represent the City at strategic partnership events, as required.	 Represented the City at the following strategic partnership events: Co-sponsored a booth with WA AustCyber Innovation Hub at the WA Mining Conference, held at Perth Convention and Exhibition Centre on 12–13 October 2022. The panel session, titled "I've been hacked, what's next?" included City officers and experts in the cyber industry. Elected Members and City officers represented the City, hosting Senators, Members of the Legislative Assembly WA and leaders in private industry at the Chamber of Commerce and Industries WA Breakfast on 3 November 2022, featuring an address by Federal Treasurer and an overview of the Federal Budget highlights. 	✓
Q3	Implement the Small Business Friendly Approval Program in collaboration with the Small Business Development Corporation.		
	Present the quarterly report to the Small Business Development Corporation on the City's progress in implementing the Small Business Friendly Initiative.		
	Engage key partners to facilitate and support events and initiatives, to support businesses. Represent the City at strategic partnership		
	events, as required.		

MI	LESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q4	Implement the Small Business Friendly Approval Program in collaboration with the Small Business Development Corporation.		
	Present the quarterly report to the Small Business Development Corporation on the City's progress in implementing the Small Business Friendly Initiative.		
	Engage key partners to facilitate and support events and initiatives, to support businesses.		
	Represent the City at strategic partnership events, as required.		

Outcome 4-2 Innovative and confident

You are attracted to the City's unique characteristics and potential and feel confident in investing.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
International Economic Development Activities Plan A plan which provides guidance on facilitating international relationships that will lead to the establishment of Joondalup as a "global city" based around the development of mutually-beneficial relationships and outcomes.				
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017).	 The following actions from the International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017) were implemented in the quarter: Participated in the WA Invest and Trade Mission to India 2022. Deputy Mayor Christine Hamilton-Prime JP attended the Mission from 13–19 July 2022. Outcomes of the mission were shared and celebrated at an event on 25 August, attended by 80 stakeholders and businesses. A report on the outcomes was provided to Council at the 20 September 2022 Council meeting (CJ153-09/22 refers). 			

M	ILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q	2 Implement scheduled actions from the International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017).	 The following actions from the International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017) were implemented in the quarter: Participated in Indonesia Connect 2022. Met with the Consul General for India in September 2022. Continued ongoing engagement with the Trade Commissioner for India Gulf and other key stakeholders to progress outcomes of the 2022 Trade Mission to India. 	•
	Undertake a review of the International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017) to inform development of a new plan to support the global city objectives addressed through the new Economic Development Strategy.	The review of the International Economic Development Activities Plan was undertaken in Quarter 1 as part of the review of the Economic Development Strategy and Digital City Strategy. The development of a new International Economic Development Activities Plan will be informed by the development of the new Economic Development Strategy.	√
	Maintain a relationship with the City's Friendship City, Sister City, Jinan, and other target markets to identify opportunities for increased economic and cultural development.	The City has maintained regular communication with Jinan through representatives of the Shandong Province. In December 2022, the City received a gift of ornaments to celebrate Chinese New Year 2023 from Shandong. These ornaments will be used to celebrate Chinese New Year and to showcase the City's important relationship with China and Jinan.	✓
Q	Implement scheduled actions from the International Economic Development Activities Plan (2017).		
	Develop a new plan to support the global city objectives addressed through the new Economic Development Strategy.		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q4 Present the plan to support the global city objectives addressed through the new Economic		
Development Strategy to Elected Members		
seeking feedback.		
Maintain a relationship with the City's Friendship		
City, Sister City, Jinan, and other target markets		
to identify opportunities for increased economic		
and cultural development.		
Digital City Plan		
	nieve through a set of strategies and actions. The plan addresses key priority actions,	
	ses and potential for establishing virtual and physical spaces that create opportunitie	s for
start-ups.		
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the	The following actions from the Joondalup: Digital City (2012) were implemented in	\checkmark
Joondalup: Digital City (2012).	the quarter:	
	 Hosted a quarterly meeting of the Digital/Cyber Security Network in September 	
	2022, featuring updates from WA AustCyber, Office of Digital Government,	
	Department of Jobs, Tourism, Science and Innovation, and Department of	
	Home Affairs.	

MII	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Implement scheduled actions from the Joondalup: Digital City (2012).	 The following scheduled actions from the Joondalup: Digital City (2012) were implemented in the quarter: The Joondalup Innovation Challenge Pitch Night was held on Wednesday 5 October 2022 with 54 students participating. West Tech Fest — Cybotics and AI Day was held on 5 December 2022. Cybotics and AI Day showcased Australia's emerging technology across cyber security, robotics, data science and AI. Future Ready Students — The City partnered with North Metropolitan TAFE to create a new program for Certificate IV Cyber Security and Computer Science students who are completing an innovation module. 	✓
	Undertake a review of the Joondalup: Digital City (2012) to inform development of a new plan to support the digital and innovation objectives addressed through the new Economic Development Strategy.	The review of the Digital City Strategy was undertaken in quarter 1 as part of the review of the Economic Development Strategy. Preparation of a new Digital City Strategy will be informed by the development of the new Economic Development Strategy.	✓
Q3	Implement scheduled actions from the Joondalup: Digital City (2012). Develop a plan to support the digital and innovation objectives addressed through the new Economic Development Strategy.		
Q4			

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
complementary economic development activities.	ed in Joondalup to align visioning and strategic directions with the aim of supporting	
Q1 Coordinate and participate in meetings of the Joint Economic Development Initiative.	Held a meeting on 15 September 2022.	✓
Promote and support initiatives arising from the Joint Economic Development Initiative.	The Joint Economic Development Initiative provided input and feedback on the following initiatives in the quarter:	✓
	 Proposed scope for a new Economic Development Strategy Innovation in the Digital Economy approach 	
	Innovation at Ocean Reek MarinaActivity reports.	
Q2 Coordinate and participate in meetings of the Joint Economic Development Initiative.	Coordinated, participated and chaired the Joint Economic Development Initiative meeting held on 9 November 2022. Some of the key items addressed at this meeting included: • Appointed a consultant to conduct and input into a Business Perceptions Survey.	√
	 Continued the Small Business Friendly Approval Program Progressed the Medical Gap Analysis 	
	 Report on An Innovation Precinct — Building an Ecosystem. The City is working through the recommendations of the report. 	
Promote and support initiatives arising from the Joint Economic Development Initiative.	Following a presentation to the Joint Economic Development Initiative in November 2022, the Business Perception Survey was progressed, and the Joondalup Innovation Precinct project has progressed with stakeholder engagement.	✓
Q3 Coordinate and participate in meetings of the Joint Economic Development Initiative.		
Promote and support initiatives arising from the Joint Economic Development Initiative.		
Q4 Coordinate and participate in meetings of the Joint Economic Development Initiative.		
Promote and support initiatives arising from the Joint Economic Development Initiative.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
	Business cluster formation				
		dustries such as education, health and wellness, cyber, retail, tourism, government, q	global		
trad	e and investment hub, business incubation and act	tivation of commercial precincts.			
Q1	Establish a calendar of engagement with	The Joint Economic Development Initiative and industry cluster groups agreed to	✓		
	industry stakeholders and industry groups.	hold meetings quarterly, in line with Joint Economic Development Initiative			
		meetings.			
	Engage with industry stakeholders and industry	Meetings with the following stakeholders were held in the quarter:	✓		
	groups as scheduled.	Joondalup Visitor Economy Network			
		Joondalup Digital and Cyber Network			
		Joondalup Education Network.			
Q2	Engage with industry stakeholders and industry	Meetings with the following stakeholders were held in the quarter:	✓		
	groups as scheduled.	Joondalup Visitor Economy Network			
		Joondalup Digital and Cyber Network.			
Q3	Engage with industry stakeholders and industry				
	groups as scheduled.				
Q4	Engage with industry stakeholders and industry				
	groups as scheduled.				
	Evaluate the outcomes and impact of business				
	cluster formation and present an evaluation to				
	the Joint Economic Development Initiative.				

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
Coll	Regional collaboration Collaboration opportunities with State Government agencies and neighbouring local governments to identify and progress regional economic development activities.				
Q1	Support and participate in meetings of the North West Alliance.	The meeting of the North West Alliance scheduled for 22 September 2022 was postponed due to the public holiday announced by the Federal Government.	√		
	Identify and implement other opportunities for regional collaboration.	 The City held the following meetings in the quarter: Local government workshop on cyber security in August 2022 with industry partners Department of Home Affairs and Office of Digital Government, and WA AustCyber Innovation Hub. Roundtable meeting on 1 September for local Members of Parliament. 	✓		
Q2	Support and participate in meetings of the North West Alliance.	The City participated in the North West Alliance meeting held in October 2022.	✓		
	Identify and implement other opportunities for regional collaboration.	The Cities of Joondalup and Wanneroo supported delivering a regional business networking event with the Business Station, Joondalup Business Association and Wanneroo Business Association. This will be held in quarter 4.	✓		
Q3	Support and participate in meetings of the North West Alliance.				
	Identify and implement other opportunities for regional collaboration.				
Q4	Support and participate in meetings of the North West Alliance.				
	Identify and implement other opportunities for regional collaboration.				

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
Coll	Business innovation and creativity Collaboration with stakeholders to support programs, activities and events that support innovation and creativity within the Joondalup business community.				
Q1	Support and participate in meetings of the advisory board of the WA Cyber Security Node.	No meetings scheduled by the advisory board of the WA Cyber Security Node in this quarter.	✓		
	Collaborate with the Joondalup Innovation Hub and WA Cyber Security Node to support innovation and creativity within the Joondalup business community.	 Collaborated with the Joondalup Innovation Hub and WA Cyber Security Node to undertake the following actions in the quarter: Agreed to sponsor a booth and participate in a panel at the WA AustCyber WA Mining Conference to showcase local cyber security providers to the mining industry, including Sapien Cyber and ES2–Enterprise Security Enterprise Solutions. Invited Cecily Rawlinson from WA AustCyber to join the Joint Economic 	✓		
	Identify and implement other opportunities for business innovation and creativity.	 Development Initiative. Other opportunities for business innovation and creativity were identified and implemented in the quarter, including: Agreed to collaborate with North Metro TAFE to provide cyber security students with a mini challenge that will be assessed as part of their studies, and to seek industry professionals to engage with and mentor the students. Delivered The Joondalup Innovation Challenge in partnership with FRANK Team. Supported the Future Female Leaders Program by providing funding and two representatives from the City as mentors for the program. 	✓		
Q2	Support and participate in meetings of the advisory board of the WA Cyber Security Node.	The City participated in the advisory board meeting for the WA AustCyber Innovation Hub in November 2022.	✓		
	Collaborate with the Joondalup Innovation Hub and WA Cyber Security Node to support innovation and creativity within the Joondalup business community.	Collaborated with the Joondalup Innovation Hub and WA Cyber Security Node by co-sponsoring a booth with WA AustCyber Innovation Hub at the WA Mining Conference on 12–13 October 2022. The panel session, "I've been hacked, what's next?", included City officers and experts in the cyber industry.	✓		
	Identify and implement other opportunities for business innovation and creativity.	Identified the Joondalup Innovation Precinct as an opportunity to drive business innovation and creativity.	✓		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3	Support and participate in meetings of the		
	advisory board of the WA Cyber Security Node.		
	Collaborate with the Joondalup Innovation Hub		
	and WA Cyber Security Node to support		
	innovation and creativity within the Joondalup		
	business community.		
	Identify and implement other opportunities for		
	business innovation and creativity.		
Q4	Support and participate in meetings of the		
	advisory board of the WA Cyber Security Node.		
	Collaborate with the Joondalup Innovation Hub		
	and WA Cyber Security Node to support		
	innovation and creativity within the Joondalup		
	business community.		
	Identify and implement other opportunities for		
	business innovation and creativity.		

Outcome 4-3 Appealing and welcoming

You welcome residents, and local and international visitors to the City.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Destination City Plan		
	e the City's share of Perth's and Western Australia's key markets, and grow the visitor	economy.
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the	The following scheduled actions were implemented in the quarter:	√
Destination Joondalup 2021–2027.	 Conducted meetings of the Joondalup Visitor Economy Network in August and September 2022. 	
	Promoted the commercially run Sunset Explorer Bus through social media.	
	Held the Sunset Coast Sub-Region meetings with Destination Perth and Cities	
	of Stirling and Wanneroo.	
	Facilitated a photo-shoot with DestinationPerth.	
	 Engaged with Channel 7 to showcase Hillarys on the Destination WA program. 	
Q2 Implement scheduled actions from the	The following scheduled actions were implemented in the quarter:	√
Destination Joondalup 2021–2027.	 Conducted a meeting of the Joondalup Visitor Economy Network, attended by 	
	the new Chief Executive Officer from Destination Perth. Topics covered included	
	the upcoming 2023 Joondalup Festival and an open discussion of ideas for	
	business engagement.	
Q3 Implement scheduled actions from the		
Destination Joondalup 2021–2027.		
Q4 Implement scheduled actions from the		
Destination Joondalup 2021–2027.		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
Event attraction Attract and support significant events that are unique business.	to Joondalup to enhance its image as an attractive destination for visitors, tourists an	d		
Q1 Work with external stakeholders and event promoters to attract and support significant events and activities to the City.	Conducted fortnightly meetings with event owner/organiser for the City of Joondalup Festival of Motoring 2022, as part of business and stakeholder engagement and event planning and promotion.	√		
Q2 Work with external stakeholders and event promoters to attract and support significant events and activities to the City.	Conducted post-event debriefing for the Joondalup Festival of Motoring held on 28–30 October 2022 with key stakeholders in the region. The post-event evaluation report is being developed by the event organiser and will be presented to Elected Members in the next quarter.	√		
Q3 Work with external stakeholders and event promoters to attract and support significant events and activities to the City.				
Q4 Work with external stakeholders and event promoters to attract and support significant events and activities to the City.				
Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan A pilot place activation plan which aims to guide place vibrancy of the area.	Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan A pilot place activation plan which aims to guide placemaking initiatives by community, local business, and the City for greater activation and			
Q1 Implement scheduled actions from the Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022 for the quarter.	No actions from the Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022 were implemented in the quarter. Commenced planning for resources to implement the scheduled actions from the plan in quarter 3.	√		
Q2 Implement scheduled actions from the Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022 for the quarter.	Appointed the consultants to implement the first stage of the Place Activation Plan with the creation of a Town Team. The first Town Team meeting was held on 29 November 2022 with a follow-up meeting on 14 December 2022. The first Town Team events are being planned to coincide with the Perth Festival Djoondal event during 10–12 February 2023, with other events to follow.	√		
Q3 Implement scheduled actions from the Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022 for the quarter.				
Q4 Implement scheduled actions from the Joondalup City Centre Place Activation Plan 2022 for the quarter.				

5. LEADERSHIP

OUR GOAL

We have a diverse elected body that represents, promotes and reflects the composition of our community. Our Council and workforce are accountable and transparent and make balanced decisions based on sound, professional advice. Quality services are delivered by our highly-skilled and effective workforce.

YOUR OUTCOMES

5-1 Capable and effective

You have an informed and capable Council backed by a highly-skilled workforce.

5-2 Proactive and represented

You are confident that the City is advocating on your behalf for initiatives that benefit the community.

5-3 Engaged and informed

You are able to actively engage with the City and have input into decision-making.

5-4 Responsible and financially-sustainable

You are provided with a range of City services which are delivered in a financially responsible manner.

Outcome 5-1 Capable and effective

You have an informed and capable Council backed by a highly-skilled workforce.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Elected Member attraction		
A biennial program to attract quality candidates and inc	crease candidate numbers for upcoming local government elections.	
Q1		
Q2		
Q3 Develop a Communication Plan for the 2023		
local government ordinary elections.		
Q4 Implement the Communication Plan for local		
government ordinary elections.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS		
	Elected Member training Training opportunities for Elected Members to assist and support them in performing their roles and responsibilities.				
Q1	Identify and promote training opportunities to Elected Members.	 The following training opportunities were attended by Elected Members in the quarter: Mayor Hon Albert Jacob JP and Cr Adrian Hill — the CEDA State of the Nation 2022: Australia's Choices (Canberra), 5–9 September 2022. Mayor Hon Albert Jacob JP, Cr Adrian Hill and Cr Russell Poliwka — CEDA Breakfast on the Run, 30 September 2022. Deputy Mayor Cr Christine Hamilton-Prime JP — Invest and Trade WA Mission to India, 12–18 July 2022. Cr Nige Jones, Cr Russell Poliwka and Cr Suzanne Thompson — 2022 Local Government Summit (Sydney), 20–22 July 2022. 	✓		
	Present annual data on Elected Member training and development activities to Council.	A report comprising annual data on Elected Member training and development activities was presented to Council at the 19 July 2022 meeting (CJ112-07/22 refers).	V		
Q2	Identify and promote training opportunities to Elected Members.	 The following training opportunities were attended by Elected Members in the quarter: Mayor Hon Albert Jacob, Cr Russ Fishwick, Cr Nige Jones and Cr Adrian Hill — Western Australia Local Government Association Convention, 3–4 October 2022. Cr Christine Hamilton-Prime — National Health and Innovation Precincts Summit (Sydney), 22–23 November 2022. Cr Nige Jones — Community Engagement Summit (Sydney), 23–25 November 2022. 	✓		
Q3	Identify and promote training opportunities to Elected Members.				
Q4	Identify and promote training opportunities to Elected Members.				

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
Delegated Authority Manual review An annual review of the City's Delegated Authority Manual in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 to ensure the listed delegations continue to be appropriate.			
Q1			
Q2			
Q3 Undertake an annual review of the Delegated Authority Manual.			
Q4 Present the outcomes of the review to Council seeking endorsement of any changes to the Delegated Authority Manual.			
Policy development and review			
	in furthering the City's strategic goals and/or fulfilling statutory requirements.		
Q1 Develop new policies and review existing policies as directed by Council.	Reviewed and/or provided advice to the Policy Committee on the following policies in the quarter: Revised Risk Management Policy Legal Representation for Council Members and Employees Policy Review of High-Risk Bookings Policy Review of Alcohol Management Policy Proposed Venue Hire Fees and Charges Policy Corporate Credit Card Policy Proposed Amendments to the Development Proposals before the State Administrative Tribunal Policy Elected Members' Entitlements Policy — Continuing Professional Development Australian Business Excellence Framework Policy — Review Revised Civic Centre Policy.		
Q2 Develop new policies and review existing policies as directed by Council.	Reviewed and/or provided advice to the Policy Committee on the following policies in the quarter: • Asset Management Policy • Developer Contact Policy • Memorials in Public Open Spaces Policy • Minor Residential Development Local Planning Policy • Model Litigant for Civil Litigation Policy • Planning Consultation Local Planning Policy • Stormwater Management Policy.	•	

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3	Develop new policies and review existing policies as directed by Council.		
Q4	Develop new policies and review existing policies as directed by Council.		
A co	e system replacement project ore information technology solution for the City which	ch would include a customer relationship management system, online customer porta	al,
	Commence the detailed functional design and scheduling for the core system replacement project.	Detailed functional design and scheduling for the core system replacement project was not commenced in the quarter. Finalised the tender and recruitment of key staff to commence the project with detailed functional design to commence in quarter 2.	√
Q2	Complete the detailed functional design and scheduling for the core system replacement project.	Commenced the detailed design phase in November 2022. Commenced "discovery" workshops analysing business processes in December 2022. This design and analysis work will continue in quarter 3 in accordance with the project plan.	√
	Commence configuration of the base customer relationship management system and customer portal.	Configuration of the base customer relationship management system and customer portal did not commence in the quarter. Subject to the City's approval and acceptance of the functional design and associated documents (including a presentation to Elected Members), it is anticipated the configuration of the base Customer Relationship Management system and portal will commence in quarter 4.	✓
Q3	Complete configuration of the base customer relationship management system and customer portal.		
	Implement stage 1 of the customer relationship management system		
Q4	Implement stage 1 of the online customer service system.		

Outcome 5-2 Proactive and represented

You are confident that the City is advocating on your behalf for initiatives that benefit the community.

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	√
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS	
A stat	Strategic Position Statements A standalone set of statements that articulate an agreed position on strategic matters of interest to the City of Joondalup. The purpose of the statements is to provide flexibility for the Council in capitalising on unplanned opportunities for external funding and investment, and to guide the development of future strategic planning documents where current gaps may exist.			
Q1	Review the Strategic Position Statements in collaboration with the Elected Members with the view to incorporating these into the Advocacy Framework.	Presented the draft Advocacy Framework to Elected Members for feedback. The draft framework includes a proposal to incorporate the Strategic Position Statements. Following endorsement of the proposed approach, a review of the Strategic Position Statements will occur in quarters 2 and 3.	✓	
	Present the outcomes of the review and recommendations to Elected Members seeking endorsement.	The Advocacy Framework will be presented to the Council at the 18 October 2022 Council meeting with a proposal to include the Strategic Position Statements. Following endorsement of the proposed approach, a review of the Strategic Position Statements will occur in quarters 2 and 3.	*	
Q2	[milestones from previous quarter] Review the Strategic Position Statements in collaboration with the Elected Members with the view to incorporating these into the Advocacy Framework.	Presented the Advocacy Framework with a proposal to include the Strategic Position Statements to Council at the 18 October 2022 Council Meeting (CJ168-10/22 refers). Council endorsed the framework, noting the incorporation and review of the Strategic Position Statements. The review will occur in quarter 3.	√	
	[milestones from previous quarter] Present the outcomes of the review and recommendations to Elected Members seeking endorsement.	The outcomes of the review will be presented in quarter 3.	~	

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3		
Q4		
Advocacy Framework		
	ocacy activities to ensure evidenced-based decision making, greater stakeholder	
	ximise opportunities for support and investment into the City.	
Q1 Develop advocacy priorities in collaboration with		✓
Elected Members.	Council meeting. Following endorsement of the Advocacy Framework, advocacy	
	priorities will be developed.	
Undertake advocacy activities in line with the	The following advocacy activities were undertaken in line with the advocacy	√
advocacy priorities.	priorities in the quarter:	
	 Attended the Committee for Economic Development Australia — State of the Nation trip to Canberra. 	
	• Facilitated a Roundtable with local Members of Parliament to advocate for State Government commitments.	
Review and update advocacy priorities, as	Advocacy priorities were reviewed and updated in the quarter for the following	✓
opportunities arise.	advocacy activities:	
	Meeting with Hon Roger Cook MLA, Minister for Jobs and Trade in September	
	2022 regarding an innovation precinct.	
	Committee for Economic Development Australia — State of the Nation trip to	
	Canberra.	
	Roundtable with local Members of Parliament.	

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	[milestones from previous quarter] Develop advocacy priorities in collaboration with Elected Members.	The Advocacy Framework was endorsed by Council at the 18 October 2022 Council Meeting (CJ168-10/22 refers).	✓
	Undertake advocacy activities in line with the advocacy priorities.	The following advocacy activities were undertaken in line with the advocacy priorities in the quarter: • Attended the AusBiotech Conference 2022 • Attended the WA Tourism Awards 2022 • Attended the Health and Innovation Summit • Attended the Committee for Economic Development of Australia — Diversification of the WA Economy (WA 2035) Lunch on 28 October 2022 • Facilitated Tamil Nadu Delegation Visit on 31 October 2022 • Attended Singaporean High Commissioner meeting 1 November 2022.	✓
	Review and update advocacy priorities, as opportunities arise.	Advocacy priorities were reviewed and updated in the quarter for the following advocacy activities: • Meeting with Jessica Stojkovski MLA, Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister for Transport in December 2022 regarding an innovation precinct. • During the advocacy trip to Sydney and Canberra in November 2022 City representatives and Cr Christine Hamilton-Prime met with the following stakeholders: • City of Paramatta • Randwick Health and Innovation Precinct (Tour) • Stone & Chalk (AustCyber) • Enterprise Singapore • Paradigm Shift Asset Management • Macquarie Tech Park • Microsoft • Proto Axiom • Office of Claire O'Neill MP • Dept of Industry, Science and Resources • Department of Home Affairs • Indian High Commission.	

MII	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q3	Undertake advocacy activities in line with the advocacy priorities.		
	Review and update advocacy priorities, as opportunities arise.		
Q4			
	Review and update advocacy priorities, as opportunities arise.		
	omissions to State and Federal Governments mal submissions from the City to the State and Fed	leral Governments on relevant strategic policy matters affecting the City.	
Q1	Monitor for and prepare submissions to State and Federal Governments on strategic policy matters affecting the City, as opportunities arise.	The following submission to State and Federal Governments was prepared in the quarter: • Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (WA) — Child Safety Policy for Local Government.	✓
Q2	Monitor for and prepare submissions to State and Federal Governments on strategic policy matters affecting the City, as opportunities arise.	 The following submissions to State and Federal Governments were prepared in the quarter: Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage (WA) — Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act phase 3 co-design. Economics and Industry Standing Committee (WA) — Inquiry into Western Australia's bilateral trade relationship with the Republic of Indonesia. 	✓
Q3	Monitor for and prepare submissions to State and Federal Governments on strategic policy matters affecting the City, as opportunities arise.		
Q4	Monitor for and prepare submissions to State and Federal Governments on strategic policy matters affecting the City, as opportunities arise.		

Outcome 5-3 Engaged and informed

You are able to actively engage with the City and have input into decision-making.

Non-capital projects and activities

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Community consultation		
Activities to seek feedback from the community to inform	n decision-making in accordance with the City's Community Consultation Policy.	
Q1 Undertake scheduled community consultation	Community consultation was undertaken on the following projects in the quarter:	✓
activities for the quarter.	Defeat the Beat	
	Youth Services	
	Business Ready Program	
	Youth Forum	
	Multi-Storey car park	
	NAIDOC events (various)	
	Whitfords West Park landscaping works	
	Mountain bike/BMX hub and urban bike trails.	

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2 Undertake scheduled community consultation activities for the quarter.	Community consultation was undertaken on the following projects/activities in the quarter: • Arts and cultural facility audit • Building Sustainable Neighbourhoods — Housing Issues • Business perceptions • Draft Weed Management Plan 2022–2032 • Edge Youth Centre program planning • Kambarang Concert • Music in the Park (concert 1) • Trial use of CCTV in the Whitfords West Park underpass • Use of Bramston Park, Burns Beach.	✓
Q3 Undertake scheduled community consultation activities for the quarter.		
Q4 Undertake scheduled community consultation activities for the quarter.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Stra	tegic Community Reference Group		
A reference group that provides input to Council on matters of significant community interest and strategic initiatives. The group consists of 12			
	munity representatives, 2 youth representatives (age		
Q1	Conduct meetings of the Strategic Community	Delivered the Strategic Community Reference Group meeting 1 on the	✓
	Reference Group in accordance with the work	development of a Community and Libraries Strategy on 25 July 2022.	
	plan.	Amended the Work Plan from the development of a Public Art Strategy and	
		Master Plan to the development of the Community Safety Plan 2023–2027. The	
		change is to reflect the community's view from the Strategic Community Plan:	
		Joondalup 2032 that safety is a priority issue.	
		The Strategic Community Reference Group meeting 2 was to be delivered on the	
		22 September 2022 as scheduled in the Work Plan; however, it was delayed due	
		to the Federal Government's announcement of a public holiday on 22 September 2022. The meeting has been rescheduled to quarter 2.	
<u>O2</u>	Conduct meetings of the Strategic Community	Delivered the Strategic Community Reference Group meeting 2 on the	✓
QZ	Reference Group in accordance with the work	development of a Community Safety Plan on 20 October 2022, and meeting 3 on	
	plan.	the development of an Environment Strategy on 21 November 2022. Notes from	
		these meetings were presented to Elected Members.	
Q3	Present the 2023 Strategic Community Reference		
	Group workplan to Council seeking endorsement.		
	Conduct meetings of the Strategic Community Reference Group in accordance with the work		
	plan		
Q4	Conduct meetings of the Strategic Community		
	Reference Group in accordance with the work		
	plan.		
	tomer satisfaction survey	usted by an independent consultant to measure estisfaction with City convices	
Q1	ennial telephone survey of the City's residents condi-	ucted by an independent consultant to measure satisfaction with City services.	
Q2			
Q3	Advertise a request for quotation for undertaking a		
	customer satisfaction survey in 2023/24.		
Q4	Evaluate the quotations submitted and determine		
	a preferred external consultant.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
_	etitions system ew electronic system that will enable the submissions	s of e-petitions to the Council.	
Q1	Investigate system options that will enable the submission of e-petitions.	System options were not investigated in the quarter due to staff shortages. A report presenting options on the development of an e-petition application on the City's website will be provided to Council at the 13 December 2022 Council meeting.	✓
	Review the <i>Meeting Procedures Local Law 2013</i> and relevant policies to determine if any amendments are required to allow for the submission of e-petitions.	Review of the local law and relevant policies not progressed due to recent local government reforms announced, which included standardised meeting procedures to be introduced in early 2023.	✓
Q2	Present a report to Council presenting options on the development of an e-petition application on the City's website.	A report presenting options on the development of an e-petition application on the City's website was not presented to Council in the quarter. A report has been prepared and will be presented in quarter 3.	✓
Q3	Advertise a request for quotation for a new e- petitions system, if required.		
	Evaluate the quotations submitted and determine a preferred supplier.		
Q4	Deploy the new e-petitions system and provide information about the new e-petitions system to the community.		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Live video streaming of Council meetings A new system and equipment that would enable live videous	eo streaming and video recording of Council meetings.	
Q1 Investigate system options and equipment that would enable live video streaming and video recording of Council meetings.	Completed initial investigations with the draft policy to be refined after it is presented to the Policy Committee scheduled for quarter 2, for clarification of the requirements of camera positioning.	√
Develop a policy to allow for live video streaming and video recording at Council meetings.	Prepared a draft policy scheduled to be presented to the Policy Committee in quarter 2.	✓
Q2 Advertise a request for quotation for a new video streaming system.	A request for quotation for a new video streaming system was not advertised in the quarter. It is anticipated this will be advertised in quarter 3	✓
Evaluate the quotations submitted and determine a preferred supplier.	Evaluation of quotations did not occur in the quarter as the request for quotation was not advertised. This will be undertaken following advertising in quarter 3.	✓
Present a draft policy relating to live video streaming and video recording at Council meetings to the Policy Committee seeking endorsement of Council.	Presented a draft policy relating to live video streaming and video recording at Council meetings to the Policy Committee seeking endorsement of Council. The report was presented to Council at the 13 December 2022 Council Meeting (CJ217-12/22 refers), and the draft policy was adopted.	✓
Q3 Commence live video streaming and video recording of Council meetings.		
Q4		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	publications		
	sonal and monthly publications to promote the City's		
Q1		The following City publications were distributed on matters of community interest	√
	community on matters of interest, as required.	in the quarter:	
		Spring has Sprung A6 flyer distributed to approximately 62,000 mailboxes.	
		• Libraries Spring Event Booklet, 8,000 distributed to Administration Building,	
		Libraries, Leisure Centre, and schools.	
Q2	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	The following City publications were distributed on matters of community interest	√
	community on matters of interest, as required.	in the quarter:	
		Libraries Summer Event Booklet, 8,000 distributed to the Administration	
		Building, Libraries, City of Joondalup Leisure Centre — Craigie, and schools.	
		City News Summer Edition distributed to 62,000 residents.	
Q3	Develop and distribute City publications to the		
	community on matters of interest, as required.		
Q4	Develop and distribute City publications to the		
0:4-	community on matters of interest, as required.		
	relectronic communications ragement of the City's social media presence and re	gular eNewsletters to promote the City's successes, services and events to the cor	nmunity.
Q1	Develop and distribute eNewsletters to	The following eNewsletters were developed and distributed to 59,581	✓
	subscribers.	subscribers in the quarter:	
		Arts in Focus	
		Clubs in Focus	
		Community Engagement Network	
		Joondalup Business News	
		Joondalup Job Notices	
		Joondalup Leisure	
		Joondalup Libraries	
		Joondalup Voice	
		Public Notices	
		School Connections	
		Sustainability Newsletter	
		Tender Alert	
		Y-Lounge Newsletter.	

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Develop social media content and manage the City's social media accounts.	 The following social media content was delivered in the quarter: Robertson Road cycleway bridge removal video — 32,990 reach, 192 reactions, 127 comments, and 31 shares. Share of Department of Fire and Emergency Services WA: Fire in Neerabup — 28,587 reach, 101 reactions, 129 link clicks, 145 comments, and 34 shares. Temporary road closure on Moolanda Boulevard — 26,712 reach, 115 reactions, 248 link clicks, 132 comments, and 34 shares. The Perth Coastal Explorer open top bus returns — 25,324 reach, 225 reactions, 362 link clicks, 98 comments, and 25 shares. More great news as Ocean Reef Marina continues to take shape at a fast pace — 19,397 reach, 197 reactions, 72 link clicks, 31 comments, and 13 shares. Sorrento Beach shark warning system tower — 16,156 reach, 192 reactions, 73 link clicks, 26 comments, and 23 shares. Night roadworks. An important update for Mitchell Freeway — 15,676 reach, 18 reactions, 3 link clicks, 13 comments, and 17 shares. The Water Corporation's latest #SplashofColourWA community artwork — 13,927 reach, 105 reactions, 10 comments, and 1 share. Moolanda Boulevard pedestrian footbridge works schedule — 13,286 reach, 52 reactions, 107 link clicks, 73 comments, and 12 shares. Friday Fun Facts: the suburb with the largest population in our City is Duncraig — 12,933 reach, 61 reactions, 295 link clicks, 18 comments, and 8 shares. 	

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2 Develop and distribute eNewsletters to subscribers.	The following eNewsletters were developed and distributed to 59,274 subscribers in the quarter: • Arts in Focus • Clubs in Focus • Community Engagement Network • Joondalup Business News • Joondalup Job Notices • Joondalup Leisure • Joondalup Libraries • Joondalup Voice • Public Notices • School Connections • Sustainability Newsletter • Tender Alert • Y-Lounge Newsletter.	•
Develop social media content and manage the City's social media accounts.	 The following social media content was delivered in the quarter: Valentine's Concert act announcement — 33,000 views, 263 likes/loves, 3 shares, 13 comments, 44 likes. Djoondal Perth Festival event — 23,000 views, 215 likes/loves, 44 shares, 39 comments. Invitation Art Prize winner announcement — 23,000 views, 220 likes/loves, 47 comments, 14 shares. Verge Garden Workshop — 19,000 views, 47 likes/loves, 29 shares, 19 comments. Bin Sticker competiton winner — 18,500 views, 215 likes/loves, 28 comments, 4 shares. Kambarang event announcement — 17,000 views, 99 likes/loves, 30 comments, 18 shares. Little Feet Festival event post — 16,000 views, 82 likes/loves. Joondalup Festival of Motoring shared posts had strong engagement leading up to and during the event. Urban List rated Mullaloo in top 10 WA beaches — reach 42,500, 821 likes/loves, 143 comments, 127 shares. Launch of resident ticket sales for 2023 Valentine's Concert — reach 30,000, 150 likes/loves, 160 comments, 15 shares. 	

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	 City's Walk of Fame 2023 Nominations — reach 25,000, 15 likes/loves, 19 comments. Burns Beach Expression of Interest — reach 24,000, 132 reactions, 78 comments, 23 shares. Works at Padbury's Wentworth Park — reach 22,000, 230 reactions, 30 comments, 4 shares. Chichester Park Upgrade — reach 23,799, 219 reactions, 25 comments, 5 shares. It's automatic. It's systematic. It's hydromatic. It's Grease at the Drive-In! — reach 19,494, 219 reactions, 25 comments, 8 shares. Love to sing? Join the City of Joondalup Community Choir — reach 14,936, 201 reactions, 60 comments, 20 shares. Calling all local artists! The City invites you to enter the 2023 Community Art Exhibition — reach 14,105, 163 reactions, 34 comments, 20 shares. Waterwise verge rebate program — (first post) reach 30,000, 120 likes/loves, 82 comments, 53 shares; (second post) reach 13, 313, 291 reactions, 29 comments, 17 shares. 	
Q3 Develop and distribute eNewsletters to subscribers. Develop social media content and manage the City's social media accounts.		
Q4 Develop and distribute eNewsletters to subscribers. Develop social media content and manage the City's social media accounts.		

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
	Website upgrade		
An		ce accessibility, provide more efficient online services, and enhance the experience	
Q1	Undertake background research and scoping to	Developed and refined the scoping document to inform development of the City's	\checkmark
	inform development of the City's new website.	new website.	
Q2	Advertise a tender for a consultant to upgrade the	Did not advertise a tender for a consultant to upgrade the City's website due to	✓
	City's website.	timing constraints. A tender will be advertised in quarter 3.	
	Evaluate the tenders submitted and determine a	Did not evaluate tenders or determine a preferred consultant as the tender was	✓
	preferred consultant.	not advertised in the quarter. A tender will be advertised in quarter 3.	
	Liaise with the consultant to commence	Did not liaise with a consultant as the tender was not advertised or determined in	✓
	development of the City's new website.	the quarter. A tender will be advertised in quarter 3.	
Q3	Liaise with the consultant to progress		
	development of the City's new website		
Q4	Liaise with the consultant to progress		
	development of the City's new website		

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Customer service centralisation A project to centralise the City's main customer servic contact resolution.	e functions to achieve greater organisational efficiency and a higher rate of first point	of
Q1 Finalise the optimisation of the City's telephony system, including improvements to call-handling, routing and configurations.	 Optimisation of the City's telephony system occurred this quarter and included the following changes from 8 August 2022: Optimised contact centres queues. Phasing-out of a dedicated switchboard operator (as calls can be answered by multiple staff, from multiple queues simultaneously). Introduced wrap-up codes allowing to capture the reason or type of call. Gained the ability to report on intra-day work activities with greater accuracy. Optimised Community Safety (Ranger Services and Parking Services) phone queues to allow staff to answer calls from both queues simultaneously. Completed the upgraded queue routing system. Deployed the new version of the software, TouchPoint, which is being used across three business units. 	✓
Commence the deployment of a new integrated voice response system to provide improved routing accuracy.	Deployment of a new integrated voice response system did not commence in the quarter. Commenced discussions to scope requirements for an auto-attendant/Integrated Voice Response system scheduled to be implemented in quarter 2.	✓
Progress other improvements to the City's online telephone and in-person customer service offerings.		✓

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS
Q2	Finalise the deployment of a new integrated voice response system to provide improved routing accuracy.	Deployment of a new integrated voice response system did not commence in the quarter. Initial workshops conducted and scoping requirements underway for an auto-attendant/integrated voice response system scheduled to be implemented in quarter 3.	✓
	Progress options to reconfigure the City's in- person customer service desk at 90 Boas Avenue, Joondalup, for improved access and customer experience.	Options to reconfigure the City's in-person customer service desk have been designed for improved access and customer experience.	✓
	Progress other improvements to the City's online, telephone and in-person customer service offerings.	 Other improvements to the City's online, telephone and in-person customer service offerings undertaken this quarter included: Commencement of the Core System Replacement Project. Development of the Search Connect tool for the Customer Care Team. Further design and improvements to the Customer Care Knowledgebase of procedures and processes. Sourced, designed, developed content and deployed a Wallboard in the Contact Centre to display real time phone statistics, providing the team the ability to monitor service levels more closely. Further trialling and testing of softphone technology in preparation for deployment in quarter 3. 	✓
Q3	Progress other improvements to the City's online, telephone and in-person customer service offerings.		
Q4	Progress other improvements to the City's online, telephone and in-person customer service offerings.		

Outcome 5-4 Responsible and financially-sustainable

You are provided with a range of City services which are delivered in a financially responsible manner.

Non-capital projects and activities

STATUS KEY	
Milestone complete	
Milestone behind schedule	
On budget	✓
Over budget	A
Under budget	▼

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS				
A h	10-Year Strategic Financial Plan A high-level document that outlines the City's approach to delivering infrastructure and services to the community in a financially-sustainable ar affordable manner.						
Q1	Present the 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2022 to the Major Projects and Finance Committee for review.	Presented the 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2022 to the Major Projects Finance Committee at the September meeting.	√				
	Present the 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2022 to Elected Members for review.	The 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2022 was presented to Elected Members for review in September 2022. The Plan will be presented to Council at the 18 October 2022 Council meeting.	✓				
Q2	Review timings and key assumptions of major projects in preparation for the development of the draft 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2023.	Completed the review of key assumptions and major projects. Findings to be presented to Elected Members as part of the budgeting process in the next quarter.	√				
Q3	Present major project timings/assumptions to Elected Members to inform budget discussions. Develop the draft 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2023.						
Q4	Review the draft 10-Year Strategic Financial Plan 2023 as part of the annual budget process.						

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS						
5-Year Corporate Business Plan								
A medium-term planning document which contains the priorities, principal strategies and activities that have been developed in response to the								
aspirations, vision and objectives in the 10-Year Strategic Community Plan.								
Q1								
Q2 Q3								
Q4 Prepare the 5-Year Corporate Business Plan 2022–2027.	n for							
Present the 5-Year Corporate Business Plan	n to							
Council seeking endorsement.								
Annual Report								
A report that provides an annual overview of the	City's activities and information about organisational performance. The report informs the							
community and key stakeholders about achievem	ents, challenges and future plans, and demonstrates the City's performance against the							
aspirations, vision and objectives of the 10-Year	Strategic Community Plan.							
Q1 Prepare the Annual Report for 2021/22.	Commenced preparation of the draft Annual Report 2021/22.	✓						
Q2 Present the Annual Report to Council seekir endorsement.	The Annual Report was not presented to Council in the quarter as the external Auditor General's Report has not been finalised. It is anticipated the Annual Report will be presented to Council in quarter 3.	√						
Present the Annual Report to the Annual General Meeting of Electors.	The Annual General Meeting of Electors did not occur in the quarter. The Annual Report will be presented to the Annual General Meeting of Electors once the Auditor General's Report is received by the City and Council endorses the Annual Report. The Annual General Meeting of Electors is expected to occur in quarter 3.	~						
Q3								
Q4								

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS					
Compliance Audit Return An annual audit of the City's compliance with various legislation, as determined each year by the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries.							
Q1							
Q2							
Q3 Prepare the Compliance Audit Return for 2022.							
Present the Compliance Audit Return for 2022 to							
the Audit and Risk Committee seeking							
endorsement of Council.							
Present the endorsed Compliance Audit Return							
to the Department of Local Government, Sport							
and Cultural Industries.							
Q4							
Integrity and conduct annual collection							
An annual collection of information to aid the Public Se	ctor Commission in assessing the integrity of the Western Australian government se	ector.					
Q1 Complete the Integrity and Conduct Annual	Collated responses to the Integrity and Conduct Annual Collection Survey.	√					
Collection Survey for the City.							
Present the Integrity and Conduct Annual	Submitted the Annual Collection Survey online to the Public Sector Commission	\checkmark					
Collection Survey to the Public Sector	on 26 July 2022.						
Commission.							
Q2							
Q3							
Q4							

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS						
Aus	Australasian Local Government Performance Excellence Program								
	An annual program managed by Local Government Professionals Australia and Price Waterhouse Cooper that tracks and benchmarks the								
performance of local governments in relation to workforce, finance, operations and service delivery.									
Q1	Submit annual data to the Local Government	Collated and submitted 2021/22 data to the Local Government Performance	√						
	Performance Excellence Program for the City.	Excellence Program in the quarter.							
Q2	Submit annual financial data to the Local	Submitted annual financial data to the Local Government Performance Excellence	\checkmark						
	Government Performance Excellence Program	Program in the quarter.							
	for the City.								
Q3	Review the benchmarking data made available								
	by Local Government Professionals Australia for								
	analysis and review insights to inform continuous								
0.4	improvement.								
Q4	Review the benchmarking data made available by Local Government Professionals Australia for								
	analysis and review insights to inform continuous								
	improvement.								
Stat	e of the City reporting								
		vements and key performance indicators for each of the key themes of the 10-Year S	Strategic						
	imunity Plan.		on aregio						
Q1									
Q2	Commence development of the State of the City	Development of the State of the City reports for 2021/22 did not commence due to	✓						
	reports for 2021/22.	the finalisation of the Annual Report being delayed. It is anticipated that							
		development of the State of the City reports will commence in quarter 3.							
Q3	Finalise development of the State of the City								
	reports for 2021/22.								
	Present the State of the City reports to Elected								
	Members and publish the reports via the City's								
	website.								
Q4									

MILESTONE	COMMENT	STATUS							
Audit and Risk Committee									
A statutory committee of Council established under the Local Government Act 1995 to guide, monitor and assist in issues relating to risk									
management, financial management, and internal control and legislative compliance.									
Q1 Present audit and risk-related information to the	The following reports were presented at the Audit and Risk Committee meeting on	\checkmark							
Audit and Risk Committee for review, as	8 August 2022 for review:								
scheduled for the quarter.	Role and functioning of the Audit and Risk Committee								
	3-year Internal Audit Plan								
	Scope for the Chief Executive Officer's 3-yearly review (risk management,								
	internal control and legislative compliance)								
	Office of the Auditor General — Information Systems Audit Report 2022 (local								
	government entities)								
	Cyber security arrangement.	_							
Present financial-related information to the Audit	The following reports were presented at the Audit and Risk Committee meeting on	✓							
and Risk Committee for review as scheduled for	8 August 2022 for review:								
the quarter.	Scope for the Chief Executive Officer's 3-yearly review (financial management)								
	Chief Executive Officer's credit card expenditure (October–December 2021)								
	Chief Executive Officer's credit card expenditure (January–March 2022)								
	Chief Executive Officer's credit card expenditure (April–June 2022)								
	Half yearly report: write-off of monies (1 January–30 June 2022).								
Present other information to the Audit and Risk	The following reports were presented at the Audit and Risk Committee meeting on	√							
Committee as requested.	8 August 2022:								
	Benefits management program								
	Elected Member dinner attendance report — quarter 4 (April–June 2022)								
	Change of meeting times — Audit and Risk Committee.								

MIL	ESTONE	COMMENT					
Q2	Present audit and risk-related information to the Audit and Risk Committee for review as scheduled for the quarter.	The following reports were presented at the Audit and Risk Committee meeting on 16 November 2022 for review: • Strategic Risk Register • Fraud Risk Management — Better Practice Guide • Internal audit outcomes • Cyber security arrangements.	✓				
	Present financial-related information to the Audit and Risk Committee for review as scheduled for the quarter.	No financial-related reports were required in the quarter.	✓				
	Present other information to the Audit and Risk Committee as requested.	The following reports were presented at the Audit and Risk Committee meeting on 16 November 2022 for review: Setting of the 2023 meeting dates for the Audit and Risk Committee Elected Member dinner attendance report — quarter 1 (July–September 2022).	✓				
Q3	Present audit and risk-related information to the Audit and Risk Committee for review as scheduled for the quarter.						
	Present financial-related information to the Audit and Risk Committee for review as scheduled for the quarter.						
	Present other information to the Audit and Risk Committee as requested.						
Q4							



Corporate Business Plan Quarterly Capital Works Progress Report - Financial Year 2022/2023

Trim Reference: 56593

Version Control: 10-Jan-2023 - 08:59:48

PDP Parks Development Program

Quarter 2 - Oct to Dec 2022

	e Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
PDP2222	Ocean Reef Park LMP	788,999	276,320	7/10/2022	31/12/2022	50			28/02/2023	Works in Progress
PDP2252	Tree Planting Program	289,052	107,967	1/07/2021	30/11/2023	33				Works in Progress
PDP2271	Irrigation Renewals	50,000	1,504	5/07/2022	30/06/2023	0				Works Programed
PDP2282	Dog Exercise Park Development	246,384	0	7/10/2023	14/12/2023	0		MULT 2/3		Project deferred to Future Program
PDP2322	McCubbin Pk Irrigation Renewals	206,400	106,823	15/08/2022	16/03/2023	75		MULT 3/3		Works in Progress
PDP2343	Ocean Gate Bore Renewal	177,379	66,642	1/11/2021	30/11/2022	50		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works in Progress
PDP2344	Glengarry Park Irrigation Network	229,128	57,789	1/03/2022	15/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	5/01/2023	Works Completed
PDP2348	Barridale Pk Irrigation Renewal - DESIGN	10,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PDP2350	Sorrento Bowling Synthetic Turf	447,071	46,249	1/11/2022	30/09/2023	0		MULT 1/2		Works Programed
PDP2351	Clifford Coleman Amenity Upgrades	236,873	12,314	7/02/2023	7/04/2023	0				Quotation Phase
PDP2354	Killen/Sycamore Amenity Upgrades	407,411	392,214	14/01/2023	14/03/2023	100		Actual Completion	4/11/2022	Works Completed
PDP2355	Padbury N/E Cluster Pk Revitalise	654,244	223,349	1/09/2022	14/05/2023	50				Works in Progress
PDP2359	Percy Doyle Soccer Irrigation Network	45,000	61,236	1/10/2022	1/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	28/10/2022	Works Completed
PDP2360	Cliff Park Landscaping Improvements	115,000	0	1/04/2023	31/05/2023	0				Investigation Phase
PDP2361	Gascoyne Park Iron Filter Installation	165,000	145,140	1/08/2022	16/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	28/10/2022	Works Completed
PDP2362	Warwick NORTH Cluster Pk Revital -DESIGN	30,000	14,278			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
PDP2363	Greenwood N/E Cluster Pk Revital -DESIGN	30,000	18,773			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
PDP2364	Whitfords West Pk Amenity Improv DESIGN	25,000	8,395			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase

Program Totals: 4,152,941 1,538,994

FNM Foreshore & Natural Areas Management Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
FNM2051 Coastal & Foreshore Fencing Renewal Prog	120,000	117,213	1/10/2022	31/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	21/11/2022	Works Completed
FNM2058 Conservation Reserves Interpretive Signa	20,000	12,821	15/03/2023	15/05/2023	50				Works in Progress
FNM2076 Natural Areas Asset Program	30,000	1,289	1/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase
FNM2085 Craigie OS Bushland Path Renewals	100,000	547	1/03/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased

FNM Foreshore & Natural Areas Management Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
FNM2095 Mullaloo North Beach Connection DESIGN	20,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
FNM2102 Duffy House Fencing	65,000	0	1/03/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
FNM2103 Coastal and Estuarine Mitigation Program	22,778	0			0		MULT 1/3		Works Phased

Program Totals: 377,778 131,868

PEP Parks Equipment Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
PEP2044 Universal Access Paths Program	130,092	39,136	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	15				Works in Progress
PEP2075 Parks Asset Replacement / Renewal	60,000	21,915	13/09/2022	18/06/2023	35				Works in Progress
PEP2517 Tennis Court Resurfacing Program	120,000	40,271	4/10/2021	29/04/2023	40				Works in Progress
PEP2521 McKirdy Park Playspace Renewal	78,000	62,776	21/11/2022	14/02/2023	100		Actual Completion	9/12/2022	Works Completed
PEP2619 Bollard And Fencing Renewal Program	50,000	0	1/02/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
PEP2625 Glenmere Park Playspace Renewal	74,400	5,996	14/04/2023	14/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase
PEP2626 Naturaliste Pk Playspace Renewal -DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2629 Cricket Infrastructure Renewal City Wide	50,000	22,543	1/09/2022	15/11/2022	88		Expected Completion	10/02/2023	Works in Progress
PEP2635 Wentworth Park Playspace Renewal	111,306	127,024	14/05/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	31/08/2022	Works Completed
PEP2638 Park Seating Renewal City Wide	45,702	4,550	18/10/2021	31/12/2022	33		Expected Completion	31/03/2023	Works in Progress
PEP2644 Park Vehicle Entry Renewal City Wide	185,000	48,218	28/02/2022	23/05/2023	5				Works in Progress
PEP2707 Whitfords Nodes Pk Health & Wellbeing Hu	414,184	6,157	1/07/2022	31/01/2023	50		Expected Completion	31/03/2023	Works in Progress
PEP2762 Oleaster Park Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	900			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2763 Kanangra Park Playspace Renewal	104,500	1,584	15/04/2023	15/06/2023	0				Concept Design
PEP2776 Shade Sail Program	50,000	36,465	14/11/2022	14/01/2023	100		Actual Completion	22/11/2022	Works Completed
PEP2786 Castlecrag Playspace Renewal	120,900	4,880	30/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Programed
PEP2787 Basketball Pad Replacement Program	64,929	17,255	4/10/2021	3/12/2022	20		Expected Completion	31/03/2023	Project Under Review
PEP2791 Ocean Reef Park Playspace Renewal	120,900	41,275	7/10/2022	31/12/2022	65		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works in Progress
PEP2795 Flinders Park Playspace Renewal	130,900	4,491	14/11/2022	7/02/2023	0				Works Programed
PEP2796 Gerda Park Playspace Renewal	74,400	1,212	30/06/2023	1/05/2023	0				Concept Design
PEP2801 Cliff Park Playspace Renewal	74,400	0	1/04/2023	31/05/2023	0				Design Phase
PEP2802 Lakevalley Park Playspace Renewal	120,900	2,276	14/01/2023	14/03/2023	30				Works in Progress
PEP2804 Melene Park Playspace Renewal	120,900	45,462	1/10/2022	30/11/2022	70		Expected Completion	31/01/2023	Works in Progress
PEP2805 Legana Park Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2806 Glenbank Park Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2813 Greenlaw Park Playspace Renewal	120,900	95,995	1/11/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	19/12/2022	Works Completed
PEP2814 Poseidon Park Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	2,738			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
PEP2815 Baltusrol Pk Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased

PEP Parks Equipment Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
PEP2847 Galston Park Playspace Renewal	120,900	1,759	1/11/2022	31/12/2022	0		Expected Completion	30/06/2023	Works Programed
PEP2848 Water Tower Pk Playspace Renewal -DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2849 Barridale Pk Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2850 Bridgewater Pk Playspace Renl -DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2851 Admiral Park Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	1,232			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
PEP2852 Hillarys Park Playspace Renewal - DESIGN	8,000	579			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
PEP2853 BMX Track Upgrades	339,474	253,378	21/07/2021	18/06/2023	33				Works in Progress
PEP2854 Basketball Pad Installation	45,000	0	4/10/2022	3/12/2022	0		Expected Completion	31/03/2023	Project Under Review
PEP2855 Nanika Pk Playspace Installaion - DESIGN	8,000	0			0		MULT 1/2		Works Phased
PEP2860 Barridale Park additional Cricket Nets	74,856	43,343	1/04/2022	31/08/2022	100		Actual Completion	2/11/2022	Works Completed
PEP2862 Sir James McCusker - Place of Reflection	47,000	25,753	1/09/2022	30/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	21/10/2022	Works Completed
PEP2865 West Coast / Troy Ave Fountain & Shower	30,000	2,938	7/02/2023	7/04/2023	0				Quotation Phase

Program Totals: 3,175,543 962,101

SSE Streetscape Enhancement Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
SSE2055 Streetscape Renewal Program	381,732	140,820	1/05/2022	30/06/2023	33				Works in Progress
SSE2056 City Centre Streetscape Renewal Program	815,000	504,579	1/05/2022	21/05/2023	50				Quotation Phase
SSE2057 Leafy City Program	515,637	75,185	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase
SSE2058 Whitfords Avenue Streetscape Upgrades	259,203	0	1/03/2023	30/06/2023	100		Project Withdray	v n	Project Withdrawn
SSE2059 Joondalup Drive Streetscape Upgrades	575,693	329,062	1/05/2022	14/04/2023	50				Design Phase

Program Totals: 2,547,265 1,049,646

LTM Local Traffic Management Program

Project Code	Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
LTM2003	Bus Shelter/Stops Program	35,000	45,110	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	100		Actual Completion	21/10/2022	Works Completed
LTM2126	Electra Street Intersection Treatment	168,790	174,297	18/07/2022	28/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	14/10/2022	Works Completed
LTM2132	Minor Road Safety Improvements	50,000	14,463	1/06/2022	30/06/2023	3				Works in Progress
LTM2153	Boas Avenue Intersection Upgrade	576,264	0	23/08/2023	23/12/2023	0		MULT 2/3		Investigation Phase
LTM2166	Gwendoline Drive Median Upgrade	235,915	0	13/03/2023	30/06/2023	0				Design Phase
LTM2174	Selkirk Drv - Connolly Drv to Inez Pass	264,007	266,662	1/08/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	2/09/2022	Works Completed
LTM2177	Grand Boulevard Bus Lanes DESIGN	245,000	0			0		PTA MULT 2/3		Investigation Phase
LTM2185	Castlecrag/Henderson Intersection Upgrad	45,000	3,298	15/05/2023	16/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase

LTM Local Traffic Management Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
LTM2190 Creaney / Kidbrooke Pedestrian Crossings	13,943	30,516	25/07/2022	31/08/2022	100		Actual Completion	14/10/2022	Works Completed
LTM2191 Camberwarra School Crossing Upgrade	40,000	0	11/04/2023	9/05/2023	0				Design Phase
LTM2192 Erindale Road School Crossing Upgrade	105,000	2,621	11/04/2023	26/05/2023	0				Design Phase
LTM2194 Scaphella/Meridian Intersection Upgrade	70,000	72,426	5/12/2022	14/02/2023	100		Actual Completion	19/12/2022	Works Completed
LTM2195 Cowper/Parker Intersection Upgrade	150,000	2,981	8/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Design Phase
LTM2201 Trappers Drive Intersections Upgrades	235,000	11,454	11/04/2023	16/06/2023	5				Works in Progress

Program Totals: 2,233,919 623,828

SBS Blackspot Program

Project Code	Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
SBS2037	Marmion / McWhae Intersection Upgrade	243,882	216,964	6/09/2021	24/12/2021	100		FBS Actual Completion	30/06/2022	Works Completed
SBS2090	Marmion Avenue and Cambria Street	15,533	2,965	18/10/2021	24/12/2021	100		FBS Actual Completion	4/03/2022	Works Completed
SBS2091	Marmion Ave and Coral St Intersection	478,631	100,979	20/02/2023	30/06/2023	0		FBS		Design Phase
SBS2092	Marmion Ave and Forrest Rd Intersection	831,705	10,183	11/04/2023	30/06/2023	0		FBS		Design Phase
SBS2093	Ocean Reef Rd and Gwendoline Dr	758,775	2,303	13/03/2023	30/06/2023	0				Design Phase
SBS2094	Joondalup/Lakeside South Traffic Signals	15,000	739	3/04/2023	5/05/2023	0				Design Phase
SBS2095	Hepburn/Amalfi Roundabout Improv -DESIGN	25,000	3,291	31/07/2023	27/10/2023	0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
SBS2096	Hepburn/Karuah Inter Upgrade - DESIGN	30,000	10,639	14/08/2023	10/11/2023	0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase

Program Totals: 2,398,526 348,064

PFP Parking Facilities Program

Project Code	Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
PFP2066	Pinnaroo Point Pking Improvements	450,000	52,428	13/09/2021	17/07/2023	33		Multi-Year Project		Works in Progress
PFP2084	Prince Regent Park Parking Improvements	165,000	1,143	21/11/2022	3/02/2023	0			31/05/2023	Quotation Phase
PFP2087	Juniper Park Parking Improvements	75,000	0	10/01/2023	27/01/2023	0				Works Programed
PFP2098	Warrigal Park Parking Improvements	195,000	198,141	28/11/2022	27/01/2023	100		Actual Completion	23/11/2022	Works Completed
PFP2099	Poseidon Primary - Roderick Court	100,000	0	11/04/2023	12/05/2023	100		Project Withdrawn		Project Withdrawn
PFP2100	Parnell Avenue PAW Parking Installation	245,000	1,587	12/12/2022	10/02/2023	0			15/03/2023	Works Programed
PFP2101	St Patricks PAW Parking Installation	95,000	1,520	12/12/2022	10/02/2023	0			26/05/2023	Works Programed

Program Totals: 1,325,000 254,820

RDC Major Road Construction Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
RDC2003 Bridge & Underpass Refurbishment Program	25,000	4,794	1/06/2022	30/06/2023	0				Works Programed
RDC2008 Major Road & Intersection Improvement Pr	75,000	18,704	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	0				Investigation Phase
RDC2020 Warwick Rd /Erindale Rd Intersect Upgrad	104,572	-10,110	2/08/2021	24/12/2021	100		MRRG Actual Comple	20/12/2021	Works Completed
RDC2021 Whitfords Ave / Northshore Dr Roundabou	52,570	-6,836	4/01/2021	31/05/2021	100		MRRG Actual Comple	30/06/2021	Works Completed
RDC2024 Shenton Avenue Upgrade DESIGN	683,850	256,751			0		MRRG MULT 3/3		Design Phase
RDC2025 Whitfords Ave/Gibson Ave Int. Upgrade	992,858	158,672	14/11/2022	14/04/2023	0		MRRG MULT 3/3		Works Programed
RDC2026 Whitfords Ave/Kingsley Dr Int. Upgrade	451,162	164,989	14/11/2022	31/03/2023	0		MRRG MULT 3/3		Works Programed
RDC2027 Joondalup Dr/Hodges Dr Int. Upgrade	2,752,570	47,643	26/09/2023	1/03/2024	0		MRRG MULT 2/3		Design Phase
RDC2028 Mullaloo Drive Retaining Wall	104,176	33,503	9/01/2023	3/03/2023	50				Works in Progress
RDC2030 Moolanda Boulevard Pedestrian Footbridge	300,000	43,725			50		Multi-Year Project		Design Phase
RDC2031 Hepburn Ave - Lilburne to Walter Padbury	50,000	0	1/07/2024	31/12/2024	0		Multi-Year Project		Works Phased

Program Totals: 5,591,758 711,835

FPN New Path Program

Project Code	e Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
FPN2011	Minor Pathway Facilities	20,000	6,128	19/09/2022	30/06/2023	50				Works in Progress
FPN2152	Kinross Drive	25,000	124	19/12/2022	27/01/2023	0		Expected Completion	30/06/2023	Works Phased
FPN2237	Barradine Way	32,000	0	11/04/2023	9/05/2023	0				Works Phased
FPN2240	Burns Beach to Mindarie DUP Revegatition	248,837	113	1/07/2019	30/06/2025	20		Multi-Year Project		Works in Progress
FPN2248	Waterford Drive to Fenton Way	11,000	0	19/09/2022	7/10/2022	0		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works Programed
FPN2250	Oakland Hills / Delamere Roundabout Path	16,500	0	19/09/2022	7/10/2022	0		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works Phased
FPN2275	Sycamore Drive - Tecoma St	97,522	103,276	19/09/2022	7/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	18/11/2022	Works Completed
FPN2289	Colac Way	20,000	0	19/09/2022	7/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	18/11/2022	Works Completed
FPN2291	Dromana Place	47,000	0	11/04/2023	9/05/2023	0				Works Phased
FPN2292	Marmion Ave (Prendiville to Shenton)	10,262	10,262	27/09/2021	26/11/2021	100		LRCI -P2 Actual Com	30/06/2022	Works Completed
FPN2298	Eddystone Avenue Shared Path	830,000	0	3/04/2023	31/07/2023	0		MULT 1/2		Works Programed
FPN2299	Hillarys Cycle Network Expansion	1,785,000	55,016	21/08/2023	21/02/2025	0		Multi-Year Project		Investigation Phase
FPN2305	Liwara Place - DESIGN	20,000	0	15/04/2024	3/05/2024	100		MULT 1/2		Project deferred to Future Program

Program Totals: 3,163,121 174,919

FPR Path Replacement Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount Project Ad	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date		nstruction Status Comr	nent Completion Date	Project Stage
FPR2001 Pathway Replacement Program	121,904	6,484 1/06/2022	30/06/2023	76			Works in Progress

FPR Path Replacement Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
FPR2018 Pedestrian Accessibility Improvements	75,000	1,695	10/10/2022	30/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase
FPR2253 Kennedya Drive	122,000	3,999	11/04/2023	9/05/2023	0				Design Phase
FPR2256 Joondalup Drive - Shenton to Moore	250,000	4,719	11/04/2023	9/05/2023	0				Design Phase
FPR2268 Marmion Ave - Edinburgh to Burns Beach	555,131	302	7/11/2022	31/01/2023	0		Expected Completion	14/03/2023	Works Programed
FPR2283 Joondalup Drv - Treetop to Wedgewood	405,000	14,974	27/02/2023	26/05/2023	0				Works Programed
FPR2292 Beaumaris Park & Copeland Gardens	185,000	2,352	8/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Programed
FPR2293 Connolly Drive - Sussex to Burns Beach	135,000	7,292	1/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase
FPR2294 Joondalup Drive - Clarke to Collier	140,000	413	8/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Design Phase

Program Totals: 1,989,035 42,230

SWD Stormwater Drainage Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
SWD2001 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades	125,000	108,914		30/06/2023	20				Works in Progress
SWD2211 Stormwater Renewal Program	96,328	840	10/10/2022	30/06/2023	33				Works in Progress
SWD2221 Johnson Crescent Drainage Improvements	40,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
SWD2227 Stanford Park Sump Beautification	168,427	1,073	1/11/2022	15/12/2022	5			28/02/2023	Works in Progress
SWD2228 Quay Court Sump Retaining Wall Repair	4,953	4,954	15/12/2021	15/02/2022	100		Actual Completion	30/06/2022	Works Completed
SWD2231 Sump Beautification - Minor Sites	250,000	71,679	1/09/2022	30/06/2023	11				Works in Progress
SWD2233 Noal Gannon Pk Sump Beautifi - DESIGN	10,000	0	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
SWD2234 Brazier Park Sump Beautification -DESIGN	10,000	0	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase

Program Totals: 704,708 187,460

STL Lighting Program

Project Code	Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
STL2002	Path and Public Access Way Lighting	50,000	36,683	1/07/2021	30/06/2023	45				Works in Progress
STL2003	Joondalup City Centre Lighting	80,000	34,445	1/11/2017	30/06/2024	60		Multi-Year Project		Works in Progress
STL2005	Arterial & Urban Road Street Lighting	138,289	105,639	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	50				Works in Progress
STL2052	Lighting Infrastructure Renewal Program	187,589	83,383	1/07/2021	30/06/2023	0				Works Programed
STL2092	MacDonald Park Floodlighting Upgrade	634,426	410,656	10/01/2022	30/09/2022	95		Expected Completion	31/03/2023	Works in Progress
STL2111	Candlewood Park Pathway Lighting	48,860	52,958	1/04/2022	30/09/2022	90		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works in Progress
STL2112	Blue Mountain Drive Lighting Improvement	78,463	75,288	20/04/2022	30/09/2022	95		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works in Progress
STL2113	Camberwarra Park Lighting Improvements	47,000	1,216	15/04/2023	15/06/2023	0				Concept Design
STL2114	Geneff Park Lighting Improvements	50,000	1,290	1/05/2023	25/06/2023	0				Concept Design
STL2115	Craigie PAWs Lighting Improvements	45,000	16,968	1/02/2023	15/02/2023	90				Works in Progress

STL Lighting Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
STL2116 Percy Doyle Carpark Lighting Improvement	60,000	3,427	15/04/2023	25/05/2023	0				Works Programed
STL2119 Glengarry Park Tennis Court Lighting Imp	40,000	2,616	15/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Programed

Program Totals: 1,459,627 824,569

RPR Road Preservation & Resurfacing Program

KPK	Road Preservation & Resurtacing Program									
Project Co	de Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
RPR2004	Road Preservation & Resurfacing Program	220,000	35,922	1/07/2022	30/06/2023	40				Works in Progress
RPR3049	Hawkins Avenue	155,000	403	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3056	Lyell Grove	102,000	403	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3133	Parker Avenue	297,332	0	8/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Design Phase
RPR3139	Gwendoline Drive	197,000	0	20/02/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3153	Ballantine Rd - Ellersdale Av to Warwic	0	-6,125	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	9/04/2022	Works Completed
RPR3154	Calectasia St - Marlock Drv to Leschenau	0	-386	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	22/03/2022	Works Completed
RPR3156	Everard Close	60,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3170	Allenswood / Blackall Roundabout	75,000	7,330	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Programed
RPR3171	Coolibah / Orkney Roundabout	0	2,608	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	26/02/2022	Works Completed
RPR3174	Meryll Place	0	285	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	8/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3175	Wittenoom Place	7,232	4,845	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	7/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3176	Vigors Court	7,900	581	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	7/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3178	Barre Place	5,905	0	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	8/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3181	Seacrest Drive - Reef Ct to Parnell Ave	0	-2,125	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	15/05/2022	Works Completed
RPR3189	Gibson / Giles Roundabout	0	-482	1/10/2021	31/12/2021	100		Actual Completion	12/12/2021	Works Completed
RPR3206	Maritana Road	0	403	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	30/05/2022	Works Completed
RPR3207	Koombana Wy - Dorset St to Batavia Pl	13,142	4,390	1/04/2022	31/07/2022	100		Actual Completion	30/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3208	Volute Place	9,062	0	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	16/05/2022	Works Completed
RPR3213	Cord Street (Eastbound)	0	938	17/01/2022	11/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	27/05/2022	Works Completed
RPR3216	Candlewood / Brienz Roundabout	0	-2,000	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	23/01/2022	Works Completed
RPR3218	Sunlander / Citadal Roundabout	13,531	0	1/10/2021	31/12/2021	100		Actual Completion	8/05/2022	Works Completed
RPR3219	Sunlander / Currambine Roundabout	15,516	13,457	1/10/2021	31/07/2022	100		Actual Completion	30/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3222	Joondalup Drv (SB) - Petrol Entry Cord	0	4,618	1/01/2022	1/01/2022	100		Actual Completion	6/04/2022	Works Completed
RPR3224	Joondalup Drv (NB)Injune Wy to Hodges Dr	0	3,020	1/01/2022	16/05/2022	100		Actual Completion	30/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3226	Joondalup Drv(SB)-Petrol St Wedgewood Dr	0	6,456	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	22/03/2022	Works Completed
RPR3230	Shenton Ave (WB) - McLarty Ave to Joonda	0	8,608	1/01/2022	31/03/2022	100		Actual Completion	16/02/2022	Works Completed
RPR3231	Shenton Ave (WB) - Grand Blvd to McLarty	0	-1,560	1/10/2021	31/12/2021	100		Actual Completion	16/02/2022	Works Completed

RPR Road Preservation & Resurfacing Program

	e Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
RPR3232	Kingsley Drv - Forest Hill Drv to Creane	0	-2,000	1/07/2021	30/09/2021	100		Actual Completion	30/09/2021	Works Completed
RPR3233	Matipo Close	5,122	225	1/04/2022	30/06/2022	100		Actual Completion	15/06/2022	Works Completed
RPR3237	Buckthorn Way and Buckthorn Court	1,846	0	1/10/2021	31/12/2021	100		Actual Completion	13/05/2022	Works Completed
RPR3238	Margery Close	40,000	31,538	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	25/07/2022	Works Completed
RPR3239	Milton Court	46,000	30,298	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	25/07/2022	Works Completed
RPR3240	Fantome Rd - Electra St to Britannia Wy	99,000	102,997	18/07/2022	28/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	14/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3241	Lockeville Close	68,200	48,873	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	10/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3242	Woodbridge Mews	64,000	45,571	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	10/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3243	Cowalla Gardens	96,200	61,677	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	11/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3244	Tranby Court	45,000	38,713	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	10/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3245	Newtown Grove	57,500	38,199	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	10/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3246	Harrier Way	116,000	141,783	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	12/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3247	Country Club Boulevard	290,400	246,295	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		RTR Actual Completi	7/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3248	Fairway Cir - Country Club to Royal Melb	75,000	80,839	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		RTR Actual Completi	7/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3249	Oakmont Turn	77,200	69,798	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	26/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3250	St Michaels Avenue	85,400	80,995	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		RTR Actual Completi	9/09/2022	Works Completed
RPR3251	Hodges Drv (EB) - Marmion to Chantilly	123,038	80,658	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		MRRG Actual Compl	24/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3252	Chadstone Rd - Atwick to Eddystone (S)	109,000	119,719	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	26/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3253	Bainbridge Mews and OriaNA PI Laneways	55,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3254	Tarata Court	69,200	36,961	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	8/09/2022	Works Completed
RPR3255	Mandara Court	96,000	57,428	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	8/09/2022	Works Completed
RPR3256	Bernedale Wy - Poynter Dr to Langholm Pl	150,400	160,540	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	5/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3257	Sillmon Way	140,400	77,621	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	5/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3258	Jope Place	49,000	80,362	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	5/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3259	Elmton Court	34,000	15,573	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	28/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3260	Mapleton Place	96,200	93,770	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	13/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3261	St Andrews Way	168,000	159,681	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	2/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3262	Stillwater Way	186,600	174,126	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	20/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3263	Joondalup Drv (NB) - Petrol Stn to Dan M	97,221	76,157	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		MRRG Actual Compl	25/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3264	Amber Grove	68,700	44,529	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	5/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3265	Pimelia Court	72,200	2,016	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3266	Pullan Place	124,400	1,235	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3268	Melaleuca Drive	148,400	0	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3269	Kurrajong Place	183,700	0	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3270	Lambertia Street	108,200	0	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3273	Allenswood (NB) - Hepburn to Blackall	116,200	1,420	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		RTR		Works Programed
RPR3274	Allenswood (NB) - Blackall to Leschenau	189,000	3,960	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		RTR		Works Programed

RPR Road Preservation & Resurfacing Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
RPR3275 Allenswood / Merivale Roundabout	63,000	180	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		RTR		Works Programed
RPR3276 Warwick Rd (EB) - Erindale to Wanneroo	268,360	4,385	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		MRRG		Works Programed
RPR3277 Gilmerton Way	93,200	0	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3280 Wirilda Crescent	212,200	1,008	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3281 Orbell Road	120,400	2,350	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		RTR		Works Programed
RPR3282 Nimrod Place	99,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3283 Mawson Cr - David Cr to David Cr	127,600	1,747	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3284 Buchan Place	80,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3285 Mawson / Shackleton Roundabout	100,000	2,957	27/02/2023	30/04/2023	0			31/05/2023	Quotation Phase
RPR3286 Joondalup Drv (NB) - Sundew to Injune	123,105	81,782	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		MRRG Actual Comp	ılı 26/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3287 Joondalup Drv (SB) - Moore to Kennedya	102,077	106,762	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		MRRG Actual Comp	lı 23/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3289 Grand Blvd / Boas / McLarty Intersection	72,765	1,489	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		MRRG Expected Co	r 30/04/2023	Works Programed
RPR3290 Juno Court	51,200	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3291 Whitfords Av - Shopping Centre RAB	80,979	2,153	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		MRRG		Works Programed
RPR3292 Edith Close	77,200	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3293 Kylie Way	99,000	134	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3294 Becton Court	54,200	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3295 Hailwood Court	101,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3296 Whiley Road	163,600	403	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3297 Peirse Way	143,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3298 Charsley Crescent	124,200	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3299 Mullaloo Dr - Marmion Av to Koorana Rd	191,800	80,455	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	40		RTR		Works in Progress
RPR3300 Gibson Av - Barclay Av to Warburton Av	182,200	84,738	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	40		RTR		Works in Progress
RPR3301 Seacrest Dr - Marmion Av to Reef Ct	110,200	4,661	1/01/2023	31/03/2023	0		RTR		Works Programed
RPR3302 Hood Terrace	163,200	538	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3303 Whitfords (EB) - Trappers to Barridale	165,441	172,977	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		MRRG Actual Comp	ılı 21/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3304 Whitfords (EB) - Barridale to Moolanda	175,871	270,014	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		MRRG Actual Comp	lı 22/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3308 Mandarin Court	62,000	60,167	1/07/2022	31/10/2022	100		Actual Completion	26/08/2022	Works Completed
RPR3315 Kinloch Place	77,200	81,436	1/10/2022	31/12/2022	100		Actual Completion	2/11/2022	Works Completed
RPR3323 Virgilia Street	131,200	69,738	1/10/2022	12/05/2023	35		Expected Completio	n 31/03/2023	Works in Progress
RPR3325 Maple Street	66,200	1,008	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3326 Turramurra Way	187,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3336 Charlton Court	114,000	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0				Works Phased
RPR3373 Readshaw Rd - Marmion Ave to Barker Drv	215,000	193,573	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	7/10/2022	Works Completed
RPR3375 Grand Blvd (NB) Collier Pass to Boas Av	0	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0		MRRG		Works Phased
RPR3376 Lakeside Dr (EB) Joondalup Dr to Deakin	0	0	1/04/2023	30/06/2023	0		MRRG		Works Phased

Program Totals: 8,927,745 3,507,802

BCW Building Construction Works Program

Project Code Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
BCW2020 Building Component Renewal Program	120,000	71,798		12/01/2023	99				Works in Progress
BCW2025 Building Capital Upgrade Works	50,000	0	1/02/2023	31/05/2023	0				Works Phased
BCW2450 Environmental Initiatives	100,000	5,594	1/12/2022	31/01/2023	10				Works in Progress
BCW2540 Auto Door Access Control Upgrades	345,000	308,877	4/07/2022	31/05/2023	62				Works in Progress
BCW2573 Short Life Services Replacement Program	100,000	20,638		30/11/2022	47		Expected Completion	31/03/2023	Works in Progress
BCW2595 Christchurch Pk Chrooms Refurbish-DESIGN	30,000	1,760			0		MULT 1/2		Concept Design
BCW2620 Civic Centre Slab Waterproofing	650,000	13,113	1/05/2023	30/06/2023	0				Quotation Phase
BCW2625 Ocean Reef Park Toilets and Changerooms	970,000	377,229		30/09/2023	23				Works in Progress
BCW2634 Duffy House Restoration	90,231	10,347	1/07/2019	30/06/2023	100		Multi-Year Project		Works in Progress
BCW2640 Percy Doyle Football/Tee Ball -DESIGN	40,000	2,476			0		MULT 1/2		Design Phase
BCW2641 Changeroom Shower Modifications	95,000	91,327	1/09/2022	31/01/2023	90		Expected Completion	28/02/2023	Works in Progress
BCW2650 Sorrento Football Upgrade	823,796	729,985	1/05/2022	31/01/2023	80		Multi-Year Project		Works in Progress
BCW2651 Kingsley Football Club Awning	105,369	108,257	1/12/2021	31/08/2022	100		Actual Completion	27/07/2022	Works Completed
BCW2666 Craigie LC Geothermal Bore Replacement	962,781	307,192	1/10/2022	31/03/2023	20				Works in Progress
BCW2667 Joondalup Reception Centre Refurbishment	175,000	0	1/02/2023	30/05/2023	0				Quotation Phase
BCW2668 Flinders Park Roof Replacement	150,000	74	1/12/2022	31/01/2023	0				Works Programed
BCW2669 Greenwood Scout Hall Refurb -DESIGN	40,000	677			0		Multi-Year Project		Concept Design
BCW2670 Duncraig Early Learning Centre UAT	100,000	14,640	1/12/2022	30/06/2023	0				Design Phase
BCW2671 Joondalup Undercroft Lakeside Ent DESIGN	40,000	5,453			0		MULT 1/2		Concept Design
BCW2672 Iluka Sports Complex Restoration Works	135,000	83,093	1/05/2022	30/09/2022	100		Actual Completion	14/10/2022	Works Completed

Program Totals: 5,122,177 2,152,530

MPP Major Projects Program

Project Cod	le Project Description	Adopted Budget Amount FY	Project Actuals	Proposed Construction Date	Proposed Construction Completion Date	% Construction Complete	Construction Status	Comment	Completion Date	Project Stage
MPP2006	Cafes and Kiosks - Pinnaroo Point	613,000	0	1/10/2022	30/12/2022	0		Expected Completion	30/06/2023	Investigation Phase
MPP2050	Craigie Leisure Centre refurbishment	3,916,965	2,678,154	2/08/2021	31/05/2023	68				Works in Progress
MPP2058	Chichester Park Clubroom Redevelopment	4,518,897	2,494,299	15/10/2020	31/05/2023	59		MULT 3/3		Works in Progress
MPP2074	Multi-Storey Car Park - McLarty Avenue	300,000	0			0		Multi-Year Project		Concept Design
MPP2076	Sorrento SLSC Redevelopment	814,000	0	1/10/2022	31/05/2027	0		Multi-Year Project		Design Phase
MPP2077	Cafes/Kiosks/Restaurants Burns Beach	545,000	0	4/12/2023	30/06/2025	0		Multi-Year Project		Design Phase
MPP2080	Burns Beach Coastal Node Redevelopment	497,000	11,790			0		Multi-Year Project		Works Phased
MPP2082	OR Marina Club & Commercial Development	3,500,000	0	1/05/2023	30/06/2023	0		Multi-Year Project		Works Phased

Program Totals: 14,704,862 5,184,243

Grand Totals: 57,874,005 17,694,910





Project Code	BCW2595	BCW2595						
Project Name	Christchurch Pk Chrooms Refurbish	Christchurch Pk Chrooms Refurbish-DESIGN						
Project Description	Refurbishment of toilet/changeroom	Refurbishment of toilet/changeroom. Works include new storage area.						
Project Manager	Manager Asset Management Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services							
Month Ending	December	Multi Year Project	Multi Year 1 of 2					
Overall Status		Overall Status						
Scheduling	Budget							
Overall Project Comment	On Track							

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary					
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-				
22/23 Adopted Budget	30,000				
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	400,000				
Total Project Budget	430,000				
Prior Year Actuals	-				
22/23 Actuals	1,760				
Commitments	17,540				
Remaining Project Balance	410,700				

Project Milestones								
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status			
Concept	1/07/2022	31/08/2022	31/08/2022	100%				
Engagement	1/10/2022	31/03/2023	31/12/2022	100%				
Detailed/Final Design	1/08/2022	30/04/2023		30%				
Procurement	1/10/2022	31/05/2023		0%				
Construction	TBA	TBA		0%				



Project Code	BCW2640							
Project Name	Percy Doyle Football/Tee Ball -DES	IGN						
Project Description	Upgrade of changerooms for unisex usage and construction of external park universal access toilet and additional storage facilities. Works include renewal of heating, cooling, alarm system, flooring and walls rendering as required.							
Project Manager	Manager Asset Management	Project Sponsor	Director Infrastructure Services					
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year 1 of 2					
Overall Status		Overall Status						
Scheduling	Budget							
Overall Project Comment	On Track							

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-	
22/23 Adopted Budget	40,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	500,000	
Total Project Budget	540,000	
Prior Year Actuals	89,842	
22/23 Actuals	2,476	
Commitments	-	
Remaining Project Balance	447,682	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/11/2021	31/03/2022	31/03/2022	100%	
Engagement	1/09/2022	28/10/2022	31/10/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	3/01/2023	30/06/2023		20%	
Procurement	3/04/2023	30/06/2023		0%	
Construction	TBA	TBA		0%	





Project Code	BCW2650			
Project Name	Sorrento Football Upgrade			
Project Description	Sorrento Football Club Upgrade of female change rooms, grandstand and improved disability.			
Project Manager	Manager Asset Management Project Sponsor Manager Asset Management			
Month Ending	December Multi Year Multi Year Project			
Overall Status		Overall Status		
Scheduling	Budget			
Overall Project	On Track			
Comment				

Status - Colour Key		
Proceeding according to plan/phasing		
Manageable issues exist		
Serious issues – may need help		
Completed		
Carry forward to next financial year		

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	300,000	
22/23 Adopted Budget	700,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-	
Total Project Budget	1,000,000	
Prior Year Actuals	-	
22/23 Actuals	729,985	
Commitments	245,330	
Remaining Project Balance	24,684	

Sorrento Football Club

Corrolled i Cotbail Glas	John Child I Goldan Glab				
Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/07/2021	31/12/2021	31/12/2021	100%	
Engagement	1/10/2021	31/01/2022	17/12/2021	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	1/10/2021	31/01/2022	31/01/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/03/2022	30/09/2022	30/12/2022	100%	
Construction	1/05/2022	31/01/2023	28/02/2023	80%	



Project Code	BCW2669	BCW2669			
Project Name	Greenwood Scout Hall Refurb -DES	IGN			
Project Description	Refurbishment works at Greenwood Scout Hall and minor works at Calecstacia Hall funded from State election commitments.				
Project Manager	Manager Asset Management Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services				
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year Project		
Overall Status		Overall Status			
Scheduling		Budget			
Overall Project Comment	On Track				

Status - Colour Key		
Proceeding according to plan/phasing		
Manageable issues exist		
Serious issues – may need help		
Completed		
Carry forward to next financial year		

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-	
22/23 Adopted Budget	40,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	540,000	
Total Project Budget	580,000	
Prior Year Actuals	-	
22/23 Actuals	677	
Commitments	-	
Remaining Project Balance	579,323	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/10/2022	30/12/2022	31/03/2023	15%	
Engagement	1/01/2023	28/02/2023	31/12/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	1/03/2023	30/06/2023		0%	
Procurement	1/07/2023	29/09/2023		0%	
Construction	TBA	TBA		0%	



Project Code	FPN2299		
Project Name	Hillarys Cycle Network Expansion		
Project Description	Design upgrades for coastal shared path improvements, from Hillarys to Burns Beach.		
Project Manager	Manager Infrastructure Management Services	Project Sponsor	Director Infrastructure Services
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year 2 of 3
Overall Status		Overall Status	
Scheduling		Budget	
Overall Project Comment	On Track		

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary			
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	240,000		
22/23 Adopted Budget	1,585,000		
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	6,564,000		
Total Project Budget	8,389,000		
Prior Year Actuals	40,575		
22/23 Actuals	55,016		
Commitments	-		
Remaining Project Balance	8,293,409		

Coastal SP Upgrade - Southern Section

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/07/2022	4/11/2022	30/11/2022	100%	
Engagement	TBA	TBA		0%	
Detailed/Final Design	7/11/2022	9/06/2023		0%	
Procurement	12/06/2023	29/09/2023		0%	
Construction	30/10/2023	15/03/2024		0%	

Coastal SP Upgrade - Northern Section

Coastal SF Opgrade - Northern Section						
Project Milestones						
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status	
Concept	1/07/2022	4/11/2022	30/11/2022	100%		
Engagement	TBA	TBA		0%		
Detailed/Final Design	12/06/2023	5/04/2024		0%		
Procurement	8/04/2024	26/07/2024		0%		
Construction	26/08/2024	21/02/2025		0%		



Hepburn SP Upgrade - Whitfords to Gibson

Hopbaill of Opgrado	***************************************				
Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/07/2022	23/12/2022	17/08/2022	100%	
Engagement	TBA	TBA		0%	
Detailed/Final Design	9/01/2023	26/05/2023		0%	
Procurement	29/05/2023	21/07/2023		0%	
Construction	21/08/2023	24/11/2023		0%	



Project Code	MPP2050				
Project Name	Craigie Leisure Centre refurbishmen	t			
Project Description	Extension to gym, group fitness and	creche areas and a	dditional car parking.		
Project Manager	Manager Leisure and Cultural Services Project Sponsor Director Corporate Services				
Month Ending	December Multi Year Multi Year 2 of 2				
Overall Status		Overall Status			
Scheduling		Budget			
Overall Project Comment	On Track				

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary			
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	4,881,035		
22/23 Adopted Budget	3,916,965		
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-		
Total Project Budget	8,798,000		
Prior Year Actuals	4,677,256		
22/23 Actuals	2,678,154		
Commitments	1,517,574		
Remaining Project Balance	- 74,985		

Craigie Leisure Centre Refurbishment

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/02/2016	31/03/2017	31/03/2017	100%	
Engagement	1/08/2015	30/08/2015	10/08/2015	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	1/05/2020	27/11/2020	20/11/2020	100%	
Procurement	6/02/2021	30/06/2021	16/06/2021	100%	
Construction	2/08/2021	31/05/2023		80%	





Project Code	MPP2058			
Project Name	Chichester Park Clubroom Redevelo	pment		
Project Description	Chichester Park Clubroom Redevelopment.			
Project Manager	Manager Leisure and Cultural Services	Project Sponsor	Director Corporate Services	
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year 3 of 3	
Overall Status		Overall Status		
Scheduling		Budget		
Overall Project Comment	On Track			

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary			
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	1,414,386		
22/23 Adopted Budget	4,175,614		
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-		
Total Project Budget	5,590,000		
Prior Year Actuals	1,669,482		
22/23 Actuals	2,494,299		
Commitments	1,175,410		
Remaining Project Balance	250,809		

Chichester Park Clubrooms

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	7/11/2017	15/07/2018	12/07/2018	100%	
Engagement	5/03/2019	15/04/2019	15/04/2019	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	1/02/2021	31/07/2021	26/07/2021	100%	
Procurement	2/08/2021	31/12/2021	17/11/2021	100%	
Construction	7/02/2022	28/04/2023		80%	



Project Code	MPP2074					
Project Name	Multi-Storey Car Park - McLarty Ave	nue				
Project Description	Construction of a multi-storey car park in the Joondalup City Centre at 104 McLarty Avenue.					
Project Manager	Director Corporate Services	Director Corporate Services Project Sponsor Director Corporate Services				
Month Ending	December	December Multi Year Multi Year Project				
Overall Status	Overall Status					
Scheduling	Budget					
Overall Project Comment	Project withdrawn					

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-	
22/23 Adopted Budget	300,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	11,400,000	
Total Project Budget	11,700,000	
Prior Year Actuals	-	
22/23 Actuals	-	
Commitments	-	
Remaining Project Balance	11,700,000	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/07/2022	2/09/2022	30/12/2022	100%	
Engagement	1/07/2022	31/08/2022	18/08/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	TBA	TBA		0%	
Procurement	TBA	TBA		0%	
Construction	TBA	TBA		0%	



Project Code	MPP2076					
Project Name	Sorrento SLSC Redevelopment					
Project Description	Redevelopment of Sorrento Surf L	ive Saving Club.				
Project Manager	Manager Leisure and Cultural Services	Project Shousof Lifector Corporate Services				
Month Ending	December Multi Year Multi Year Project					
Overall Status	Overall Status					
Scheduling		Budget				
Overall Project	On Track					
Comment	On Track					

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-	
22/23 Adopted Budget	814,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	13,186,000	
Total Project Budget	14,000,000	
Prior Year Actuals	-	
22/23 Actuals	-	
Commitments	21,000	
Remaining Project Balance	13,979,000	

Sorrento SLSC Redevelopment

CONTROL CECO INCOCT	borronto de do recopriorit					
Project Milestones						
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status	
Concept	1/08/2022	30/09/2022	25/11/2022	100%		
Engagement	1/10/2022	30/11/2022	28/04/2023	25%		
Detailed/Final Design	1/08/2023	31/01/2024		0%		
Procurement	1/02/2025	30/05/2025		0%		
Construction	1/07/2025	31/05/2027		0%		





Project Code	PDP2354					
Project Name	Killen/Sycamore Amenity Upgrades					
Project Description	Upgrade of Killen Park and Sycamore Park utilising principles embedded within the Landscape Master Plan program.					
Project Manager	Manager Operation Services	Manager Operation Services Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services				
Month Ending	December Multi Year Multi Year 2 of 2					
Overall Status	Overall Status					
Scheduling	Budget Budget					
Overall Project Comment	On Track	•				

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	25,000	
22/23 Adopted Budget	400,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-	
Total Project Budget	425,000	
Prior Year Actuals	17,588	
22/23 Actuals	392,214	
Commitments	130	
Remaining Project Balance	15.069	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	21/09/2021	14/11/2021	12/11/2021	100%	
Engagement	21/07/2021	7/11/2021	19/11/2021	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	2/05/2022	1/07/2022	1/07/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/07/2022	30/08/2022	9/08/2022	100%	
Construction	14/01/2023	14/03/2023	4/11/2022	100%	



Project Code	PDP2355			
Project Name	Padbury N/E Cluster Pk Revitalise			
Project Description	Revitalisation of hard and soft infrast	Revitalisation of hard and soft infrastructure at Wentworth Park along with minor		
Project Description	improvements at Fraser Park and By	rne Park.		
Project Manager	Manager Operation Services Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services			
Month Ending	December Multi Year Multi Year 2 of 2			
Overall Status	Overall Status			
Scheduling	Budget			
Overall Project	On Track			
Comment	OII TIACK			

Status - Colour Key		
Proceeding according to plan/phasing		
Manageable issues exist		
Serious issues – may need help		
Completed		
Carry forward to next financial year		

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-	
22/23 Adopted Budget	645,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-	
Total Project Budget	645,000	
Prior Year Actuals	32,756	
22/23 Actuals	223,349	
Commitments	61,384	
Remaining Project Balance	327,510	

Wentworth Pk Revitalisation of Infrastructure

Wentworth it it it is a the initial and the in					
Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/09/2021	21/10/2021	29/07/2022	100%	
Engagement	NA	NA		0%	
Detailed/Final Design	21/10/2021	21/12/2021	29/07/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/07/2022	14/10/2022	29/07/2022	100%	
Construction	1/09/2022	30/11/2022	7/11/2022	100%	

Fraser/Bryne Pks Revitalisation of Infrastructure

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	14/09/2021	14/10/2021	15/11/2021	100%	
Engagement	NA	NA		0%	
Detailed/Final Design	14/10/2021	21/12/2021	24/04/2021	100%	
Procurement	14/01/2023	14/05/2023		0%	
Construction	14/03/2023	14/05/2023		0%	





Project Code	RDC2027			
Project Name	Joondalup Dr/Hodges Dr Int. Upgrad	de		
Project Description	Major upgrade to intersection including additional right turn lane from Hodges Dr to Joondalup Dr southbound, extension of turning pockets, upgrades to streetlight and pedestrian facilities, and improve Mitchell Fwy southbound access.			
Project Manager	Manager Infrastructure Management Services Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services			
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year 2 of 3	
Overall Status	Overall Status			
Scheduling	Budget			
Overall Project Comment	On Track			

Status - Colour Key		
Proceeding according to plan/phasing		
Manageable issues exist		
Serious issues – may need help		
Completed		
Carry forward to next financial year		

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	1,417,200	
22/23 Adopted Budget	1,427,600	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	2,861,600	
Total Project Budget	5,706,400	
Prior Year Actuals	92,230	
22/23 Actuals	47,643	
Commitments	16,189	
Remaining Project Balance	5,550,339	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/02/2020	31/05/2020	31/05/2020	100%	
Engagement	NA	NA		0%	
Detailed/Final Design	10/01/2022	10/03/2023		50%	
Procurement	17/04/2023	25/08/2023		0%	
Construction	26/09/2023	1/03/2024		0%	





Linked Projects - Ocean Reef Park

Linked Projects - C	Cean Neer Lark
Project Code	PDP2222
Project Name	Ocean Reef Park LMP
Project Description	Upgrade of deteriorating irrigation system and associated works as part of Landscape Master Planning principles.
Project Code	PEP2791
Project Name	Ocean Reef Park Playspace Renewal
Project Description	Renewal of existing play equipment, inclusive of softfall, retaining walls, bench seating and shade trees.
Project Code	BCW2625
Project Name	Ocean Reef Park Toilets and Changerooms
Project Description	Reconstruction of toilet / changerooms.

Project Code	PDP2222			
Project Name	Ocean Reef Park LMP			
Project Description	Upgrade of deteriorating irrigation system and associated works as part of Landscape Master Planning principles.			
Project Manager	Manager Operation Services Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services			
Month Ending	December Multi Year Multi Year 2 of 2			
Overall Status	Overall Status			
Scheduling	Budget			
Overall Project Comment	On Track			

Status - Colour Key		
Proceeding according to plan/phasing		
Manageable issues exist		
Serious issues – may need help		
Completed		
Carry forward to next financial year		

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	2,001	
22/23 Adopted Budget	788,999	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-	
Total Project Budget	791,000	
Prior Year Actuals	28,732	
22/23 Actuals	276,320	
Commitments	411,980	
Remaining Project Balance	73,968	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	21/11/2021	14/02/2022	7/02/2022	100%	
Engagement	14/02/2022	14/05/2022	4/07/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	14/02/2022	14/07/2022	11/04/2022	1000/	
	14/02/2022	14/07/2022	11/04/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/08/2022	21/12/2022	14/09/2022	100%	
Construction	7/10/2022	31/12/2022	28/02/2023	50%	



Duration (Conto	PFP2791				
Project Code	PEP2/91	PEP2/91			
Project Name	Ocean Reef Park Playspace Renew	al			
Project Description	Renewal of existing play equipment, inclusive of softfall, retaining walls, bench seating and shade trees.				
Project Manager	Manager Operation Services	Project Sponsor	Director Infrastructure Services		
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Single Year		
Overall Status		Overall Status			
Scheduling		Budget			
Overall Project	On Track				
Comment	OII ITACK				

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	-	
22/23 Adopted Budget	120,900	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-	
Total Project Budget	120,900	
Prior Year Actuals	-	
22/23 Actuals	41,275	
Commitments	57,609	
Remaining Project Balance	22,016	

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	4/07/2022	29/07/2022	1/08/2022	100%	
Engagement	14/02/2022	14/05/2022	4/07/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	2/05/2022	1/07/2022	1/07/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/07/2022	21/12/2022	14/09/2022	100%	
Construction	7/10/2022	31/12/2022	28/02/2023	65%	





Project Code	BCW2625			
Project Name	Ocean Reef Park Toilets and Chan-	Ocean Reef Park Toilets and Changerooms		
Project Description	Reconstruction of toilet / changeroo	ms.		
Project Manager	Manager Asset Management Project Sponsor Director Infrastructure Services			
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year 2 of 2	
Overall Status		Overall Status		
Scheduling		Budget		
Overall Project	On Track	_		
Comment	OII Hack			

Status - Colour Key	
Proceeding according to plan/phasing	
Manageable issues exist	
Serious issues – may need help	
Completed	
Carry forward to next financial year	

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	40,000	
22/23 Adopted Budget	850,000	
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	-	
Total Project Budget	890,000	
Prior Year Actuals	30,075	
22/23 Actuals	377,229	
Commitments	585,002	
Remaining Project Balance	- 102,306	

Ocean Reef Park Toilets and Changerooms - Design

Occan receive and rone	became the folicis and only growing besign				
Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/07/2021	31/08/2021	30/06/2022	100%	
Engagement	1/02/2022	30/04/2022	29/04/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design					
	1/09/2021	30/04/2022	29/04/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	27/09/2022	100%	
Construction	NA	NA		0%	

Ocean Reef Park Toilets and Changerooms

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/07/2021	31/08/2021	30/06/2022	100%	
Engagement	1/02/2022	30/04/2022	29/04/2022	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	. / /				
	1/09/2021	30/04/2022	29/04/2022	100%	
Procurement	1/07/2022	30/09/2022	27/09/2022	100%	
Construction	4/10/2022	30/09/2023		45%	





Linked Projects - Burns Beach Park

Lilikeu i Tojecta - L	Julii Beach Lark
Project Code	MPP2077
Project Name	Cafes/Kiosks/Restaurants Burns Beach
Project Description	Construction of a Cafe/Kiosk/Restaurant at Burns Beach Foreshore.
Project Code	MPP2080
Project Name	Burns Beach Coastal Node Redevelopment
Project Description	Redevelopment of infrastructure the Burns Beach Coastal Node, aligning with the construction of a Cafe/Kiosk/Restaurant at Burns Beach foreshore as per the Burns Beach Master Plan.

MPP2077					
Cafes/Kiosks/Restaurants Bu	Cafes/Kiosks/Restaurants Burns Beach				
Construction of a Cafe/Kiosk/Restaurant at Burns Beach Foreshore.					
Manager City Projects Project Sponsor Director Corporate Services					
December	Multi Year	Multi Year Project			
	Overall Status				
	Budget				
On Track					
	Cafes/Kiosks/Restaurants Bu Construction of a Cafe/Kiosk/ Manager City Projects December	Cafes/Kiosks/Restaurants Burns Beach Construction of a Cafe/Kiosk/Restaurant at Burns Beac Manager City Projects Project Sponsor December Multi Year Overall Status Budget			

Status - Colour Key				
Proceeding according to plan/phasing				
Manageable issues exist				
Serious issues – may need help				
Completed				
Carry forward to next financial year				

Budget / Expenditure Summary			
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	1,300,000		
22/23 Adopted Budget	465,000		
5 Year Capital Works Program 22/23 to 26/27	3,254,000		
Total Project Budget	5,019,000		
Prior Year Actuals	391		
22/23 Actuals	-		
Commitments	-		
Remaining Project Balance	5,018,609		

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/06/2020	4/09/2020	4/09/2020	100%	
Engagement	13/05/2021	21/07/2021	21/07/2021	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	1/07/2022	1/02/2023		0%	
Procurement	4/12/2023	30/06/2025		0%	
Construction	4/12/2023	30/06/2025		0%	





Project Code	MPP2080				
Project Name	Burns Beach Coastal Node Redevel	Burns Beach Coastal Node Redevelopment			
	Redevelopment of infrastructure the	Burns Beach Coas	tal Node, aligning with the		
Project Description	construction of a Cafe/Kiosk/Restaurant at Burns Beach foreshore as per the Burns Beach Master Plan.				
Project Manager	Manager City Projects	Project Sponsor	Director Corporate Services		
Month Ending	December	Multi Year	Multi Year Project		
Overall Status		Overall Status			
Scheduling		Budget			
Overall Project Comment	On Track				

Status - Colour Key				
Proceeding according to plan/phasing				
Manageable issues exist				
Serious issues – may need help				
Completed				
Carry forward to next financial year				

Budget / Expenditure Summary		
Adjusted Prior Year Budget	20,000	
22/23 Adopted Budget	497,000	
22/23 Adopted Budget	2,900,000	
Total Project Budget	3,417,000	
Prior Year Actuals	-	
22/23 Actuals	11,790	
Commitments	-	
Remaining Project Balance	3,405,210	

Burns Beach Coastal Node - Civil

Buills Beach Coastal Node - CIVII						
Project Milestones						
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status	
Concept						
	1/06/2020	4/09/2020	4/09/2020	100%		
Engagement	13/05/2021	21/07/2021	21/07/2021	100%		
Detailed/Final Design						
	1/07/2023	1/02/2024		0%		
Procurement	1/04/2024	1/09/2024		0%		
Construction	TBA	TBA		0%		

Burns Beach Coastal Node Landscaping

Project Milestones					
Milestone	Planned Start Date	Planned Finish Date	Revised/Actual Finish Date	% Complete	Task Status
Concept	1/06/2020	4/09/2020	4/09/2020	100%	
Engagement	13/05/2021	21/07/2021	21/07/2021	100%	
Detailed/Final Design	1/01/2025	30/06/2025		0%	
Procurement	TBA	TBA		0%	
Construction	TBA	TBA		0%	